

FRAUNHOFER-INSTITUT FÜR MIKROELEKTRONISCHE SCHALTUNGEN UND SYSTEME IMS



ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FRAUNHOFER-INSTITUTE FOR MICROELECTRONIC CIRCUITS AND SYSTEMS IMS DUISBURG 2010

PREFACE

The end of the global economic crisis led to a good operating result in the 26th year of Fraunhofer IMS. The Fraunhofer IMS operating budget in 2010 amounts to 20,8 million euros. In comparison to last year the number of employees slightly increased again.

The IMS used the challenging global economic situation in 2009 to concentrate on new strategic challenges and emerged from the crisis stronger than before. We could generate a series of public proceeds and gain also new, major industrial projects. The pick-up of the national and international markets allows for good future prospects for 2011.

Project Highlights 2010

A main focus of our work laid on IR-Imagers. The IMS developed an infrared-imager with VGA-resolution for the detection of thermal radiation for a wavelength range of 8 μ m to 14 μ m. A part of the required process steps for the IR-Imager will be performed in the 2011 new opened MST-Lab.

In the field of high temperature electronics we develop in cooperation with a project partner modern ASICs which are applicable for operating temperatures up to 250°C. Since several years, high temperature electronics have been one of the strategic fields of activity of Fraunhofer IMS.

In 2010, the Fraunhofer IMS processed, for our long lasting partner Infineon, SOI-Wafer, whose ICs are applied in power switches. This successful cooperation will be also an important pillar for us in 2011.

In a common international project inside the "HTA", an association of the Fraunhofer Group of Microelectronics, Leti (FR), CSEM (CH) and VTT (FIN), high voltage transistors for a 0, 25 μ m process are developed.



Events 2010

In 2010, a multitude of events and workshops have been performed at Fraunhofer IMS and at Fraunhofer InHaus Center. In March 2010, the GMM-Workshop "Reliability of semiconductor devices", carried out at the Fraunhofer Inhaus Center, attracted numerous experts to come to Duisburg. National and international experts discussed the opportunities and methods to design devices, which also fulfill the strict medical and industrial requirements in future. Continuative discussions and network contacts resulted from the attractive supporting program.

Our 5th CMOS Imaging Workshop in May 2010 attracted again more than hundred national and international guests and orators. In accordance with the global technological trend, the topic of the workshop was "CMOS Low-Light-Imaging".

The Win² event in June and the inHaus forum in September 2010 dealt both with the topic "buildings of the future". The events focused on solutions for the technical modernization and the use of sensor technologies for the building services engineering.

From the 4th to 6th November, more than 30 pupils participated at the Fraunhofer Talent School in our institute. The Fraunhofer Talent School offers young, talented pupils the possibility to deal practically with scientific-technical topics. The participants set up radio circuits, learned about microchip design and simulated and designed microchips at the computer.

The Fraunhofer IMS was co-organizer of the workshop for "Energy self-sufficient sensors and sensor networks" of the Fraunhofer Gesellschaft in Munich.

There, ten Fraunhofer Institutes presented their current trends and developments.

Personnel

In 2010, three Fraunhofer IMS employees were offered a professorship. We are happy about the career advancement of Professor Dr. Stockmanns, Professor Dr. Krisch and Professor Dr. Ressel and wish them success in following their new responsibilities. This pleasant progress verifies the academic esteem of the German universities.

For the overall excellent business year 2010, thanks are due to our partners and customers in commerce and the public authorities as well as in the ministries.

In this context, the rise in orders coming from our European neighbors is especially pleasant.

Finally, I particularly would like to thank our employees, who enabled our common success by their dedicated work. Many thanks.

holmaia

Professor Dr. rer. nat. Anton Grabmaier

Duisburg, March 2011

CONTENTS

Profile	7
Fraunhofer IMS Business Fields and Core Competencies	11
Development of the IMS	21
Selected Projects of the year 2010	
I CMOS Devices and Technologie	
Micro- and Nanosystem Technologies on CMOS H. Vogt, M. Ruß	26
CMOS-based EUV sensor F. Hochschulz, U. Paschen, H. Vogt	29
Thermally isolated mono-crystalline silicon diodes as detectors for microbolometers P. Kropelnicki	31
II Silicon Sensors and Microsystems	
Post-CMOS MEMS integration based on novel approach with Ge micromechanics Q. Wang, A. Goehlich, HK.Trieu	36
UniHealth – Universal sensor system for the detection of allergens and biomarkers C. Jonville, R. Klieber, A. Goehlich, HK. Trieu	39
Building the future of CMOS imagers J. Fink, W. Brockherde	43

III CMOS Circuits

	An 868 MHz Passive Temperature Sensing Transponder Using a Self-Biasing UHF Rectifier with – 10.5 dBm Sensitivity in Low-Cost 0.35 μm CMOS T. Feldengut, S. Kolnsberg, R. Kokozinski	47
	On Chip Digital Readout Electronics for Large Scale IR Image Sensors R. Lerch	51
IV	Wireless Chips and Systems	
	»SmartForest – Application of Transponder Technology and Wireless Sensor Networks in Forestry« HC. Müller	54
	A Data Transmission Technique for Passive Sensor-Transponders in Medicine A. Hennig, G. vom Bögel, A. Grabmaier	56
	Crash Sensor Systems for High-bay-racks F. Meyer, J. Breer, K. Grundmann	63
	MeDiNa – Telemedicine rehabilitation support in one's own four walls B. Heidemann, D. Dünnebacke, F. Schönherr, A. Amini	66
V	Systems and Applications	
	Hospital Engineering O. Lazar	71
	JUTTA – Care According to Individual Needs T. Stevens	73

List of Publications and Scientific Theses 2010	75
Chronicle 2010	85
 inHaus-center events 2010 B. Tenbosch, K. Scherer	87
Workshop on energy self-sufficient sensor networks C. Müller	88
News from trade fair VISION 2010 and ELECTRONICA 2010 S. van Kempen, M. van Ackeren	89
The Fraunhofer-Talent-School S. van Kempen, K. Althammer	90
Workshop: Reliability of Semiconductor Devices S. van Kempen, H. Vogt	91
Press Review	93

PROFILE



FRAUNHOFER IMS IN DUISBURG

The Fraunhofer Institute for Microelectronic Circuits and Systems (IMS) was established in Duisburg in 1984. The Fraunhofer IMS is, through continued growth and innovative research and development, one of the leading institutes in Germany for applied research and development in microelectronics and CMOS-technology.

Fraunhofer IMS

260
18,5 Mio. Euro
50 % of Budget
25 % of Budget
25 % of Budget

Infrastructure

Fraunhofer IMS offers a wide range of services and production of in silicon based devices and systems.

The fabrication takes place in class ten cleanrooms, wafertesting rooms and an assembly-line with together more than 2500 square meters.

Fraunhofer IMS CMOS Wafer Fab				
Wafer size	200 mm (8 inches 0 35 um)			
Cleanroom area	1300 square meters			
Cleanroom class	10			
Employees	app. 120 in 3 shifts 7 days a week			
Capacity	> 70.000 wafer/year			

IMS Production and Development

Fraunhofer IMS develops, produces and assembles smart sensors, integrated circuits and discrete elements (ICs and ASICs). It also offers the fabrication of devices on a professionally managed CMOS production line in small to medium quantities.







In the new microsystems technology lab (MST-Lab) we integrate different micro- and nanofunctions directly on top of the signal processing CMOS circuits. This procedure is called post-processing. (600 square meters)

The ICs are assembled in the cleanroom (400 square meters) of Fraunhofer IMS assembly facility. This facility supports the production of ICs in ceramic packages or as COB (Chip on board, COB). COB assembly is available from small quantities to several million units per year.

Supply and Service

The Fraunhofer IMS offers R&D services tailored to our customer needs, providing efficient solutions ranging from the initial studies to the series products.

Cooperation possibilities:

- Studies and feasibility studies
- Consulting and concept development
- Demonstrator and prototype development
- Chip production (ASIC Production)
- Development of soft- and hardware











FRAUNHOFER IMS BUSINESS FIELDS AND CORE COMPETENCIES

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AT THE FRAUNHOFER INSTITUTE FOR MICROELECTRONIC CIRCUITS AND SYSTEMS

The Fraunhofer IMS conducts research and development in many different application areas including

- Automotive
- Medical
- Consumer
- Smart Buildings
- Communication
- Aero Space
- Logistics
- Industrial Automation
- Semiconductor Industry

These applications are served by our business fields:

- CMOS process
- ASIC design und development
- Sensors
 - Pressure Sensors
 - Image Sensors
 - Infrared Sensors
 - Bio Sensors
- Embedded systems hardware and software
- Wireless systems, ICs and transponders
- Smart Buildings





1. CMOS Process and Assembly

Based on standard CMOS process technology, IMS develops customer-specific processes and special options for standard processes (e.g. capacitors, polysilicon and thin-film resistors, high voltage transistors, EEPROM, OTP and several types of sensors).

Pressure-Sensor-Process

With a clear view on the needs of a rapidly growing sensor market, IMS leveraged its long experience in research and development of CMOS-compatible integrated sensors to establish micro-mechanical pressure sensors as one of its product lines.

At the heart of this product line is a pressure sensor that is integrated into standard CMOS technology. This micromechanical pressure sensor was designed for a large range of pressures, and can be monolithically integrated with many electronic devices, e.g. MOSFETs, capacitors, resistors or EEPROMs. The layout of the pressure sensor determines its pressure range, as the membrane's stiffness is directly related to its diameter.



High Temperature SOI Process

The high temperature SOI CMOS process uses SOI substrates for the production of ASICs that operate at temperatures of up to 250° C.

Only fully CMOS compatible process steps are used to manufacture not only standard CMOS circuit elements, including EEPROM, but also silicon based sensors, actuators and power devices.

Power Devices

In close cooperation with industrial partners, Fraunhofer IMS provides a 600V-CMOS-process for half- and full bridge driver chips for IGBTs. Also a novel discrete power MOS transistor process based on trench technology has been developed at IMS. It features an ultra low on-resistance so that transistors with less than 1 mOhm on-resistance can be realized on a small die, while keeping the number of process steps low. Such low loss switches are used in power supply, automotive and other low voltage applications.

CMOS Fabrication

Fraunhofer IMS provides numerous semiconductor production services in its 200 mm CMOS production line. The professionally managed class 10 clean room has more than 1300 m² floor space. The 24 hour, 7 days a week operation ensures the uniform quality of our products.

The Fraunhofer IMS production line especially caters to the production of smaller and medium quantities of ASICs. The production line operates under an ISO 9001:2000 and TS 16949 certified quality management system, assuring stability and reliability of products and production. Timely, reliable and customer-oriented production is our and our customers key to success.









RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AT THE FRAUNHOFER INSTITUTE FOR MICRO-ELECTRONIC CIRCUITS AND SYSTEMS

2. Sensors

Pressure Sensors

The basic element of our pressure sensors is a surface micromechanical sensor that is fabricated using standard CMOS processing equipment. These sensors can be realized for a wide range of pressures, sharing a single chip with all electronic devices available in a CMOS process, e.g. MOSFETs, capacitors or EEPROMs. The sensors can be configured as absolute with capacitive readout. The necessary signal conversion, linearization and amplification circuits are realized on the same chip, effectively eliminating interference on sensor wiring that is a major issue for discrete solutions. We have already created a variety of innovative products using this monolithic integration of sensors and signal processing functions like programmable amplifiers, sensor linearization, temperature compensation or wireless interfaces.



The layout of the sensor element determines its pressure range, which may be situated between 0.5 to 250 bar, as the sensor diameter controls the stiffness of the membrane: Smaller and stiffer membranes shift the pressure range to higher pressures. Thus the sensors are suitable for the measurement of pressures ranging from blood, air, and tire pressure all the way to hydraulic oil pressure. The small size of the sensor and its associated electronics enables innovative medical applications for the in vivo measurement of the pressures of blood, brain, eye or other body fluids.

CMOS Image Sensors

Fraunhofer IMS image sensors are based on CMOS technology, which enables the monolithic integration of sensor and circuit elements on a single chip. This integration is used e.g. to control the sensitivity of each individual pixel to avoid blooming. Fraunhofer IMS has developed a dedicated 0,35 µm Opto CMOS process.

A wide range of CMOS image sensors has been developed for our customers and in research projects. The realized sensors include high dynamic range sensors, high speed sensors – which deliver 1000 high quality images per second – and high-resolution sensors with "region of interest" function for faster readout of subsections of the pixel array. The CMOS image sensors suppress smearing and blooming effects and always deliver sharp images. Electronic high-speed shutters enable the realization of 3D imagers base on laser pulsed based time-of-flight measurement.



RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AT THE FRAUNHOFER INSTITUTE FOR MICRO-ELECTRONIC CIRCUITS AND SYSTEMS

Infrared Sensor

The demand for uncooled infrared focal plane arrays (IRFPA) for imaging applications is constantly increasing. Examples for the application of IRFPAs are thermography, pedestrian detection for automotive, firefighting and infrared spectroscopy.

IRFPAs consist of an array of microbolometers located on top of a CMOS substrate which comprehends the readout circuit. Typcal array sizes are for lowcost applications 160 x 120 or 320 x 240 pixels. State-of-the-art IRPGAs achieve VGAresolution with 640 x 480 pixels.

The microbolometer is a special infrared sensor. The IR-sensitive sensorelement based on the principle for a microbolometer is fabricated by post-processing on CMOS wafers. The microbolometer converts the infrared radiation into heart energy and this induces a temperature rise resulting in a change of the electrical resistance. Typical microbolometers have pixel pitch values of 35 μ m or 25 μ m.

Biosensors

Biosensors for point-of-care and home diagnostics are increasingly asked for. Therefore Fraunhofer IMS advances in the development of a new generation of biosensors. These special sensors are developed in the Microsystems Technology Lab where standard CMOS circuits are prepared for or – in future – combined with bioactive layers. Typically, additional metals or oxides are added, as well as special surface treatment and activation or the dispension of anchor chemistry for later analyte receptor immobilization. This new technology is called post-processing and it enables the production of different sensors for different applications by joining biosensitive layers with CMOS electronic readout circuitry. This "Bio to CMOS" processing leads to Biohybrid Systems.









3. ASIC Design

The development of analog, digital and mixed analog-digital integrated systems is a core competence of Fraunhofer IMS. Application specific integrated circuits (ASICs) enable our customers to provide cheaper and more powerful products. We offer the full spectrum from custom to IP-based ASIC solutions.

Full-custom ASICs are designed from scratch to accommodate the specific requirements of the customer, providing a highly optimized product. The IP-based ASIC is based on proven generic components, with lower design time and cost. Using a mix and match approach both design styles can be combined to leverage the benefits of both.

The close co-operation with our in house CMOS production line provides a seamless and efficient path from concept to series production. Our long experience in the development of integrated circuits, starting from concept through design, layout, and fabrication to testing ensures a short development time and a minimized design risk.

Our fields of design expertise are:

- Embedded microcontroller
- High-temperature ASICs
- Smart power integration
- Non-volatile memories
- Mixed-signal design
- Sensor transponder

Beside standard ASIC solutions for all kinds of applications, ASICs with sensors and sensor signal processing integrated on a single chip have been realized.

These ASICs often combine our core competences in ASIC design,

- System-on-Chip (SoC) solutions,
- Mixed-signal signal processing and
- Integration of RF building blocks for wireless energy and data transfer.

Our customers benefit from our research in these areas, which

provides viable solutions for their applications – applications that demand miniaturization, energy-efficiency, cost-optimization and reliability.

4. Wireless Systems and Transponders

A core-competence of Fraunhofer IMS is the development and realization of wireless systems. Research and development focuses, among other things, on wireless sensor networks. These networks comprise autonomous sensor modules that are distributed over a large area or volume, and measure physical, chemical and other quantities. The measured values are transferred to a central agency, making use of intermediate nodes for data transfer, or they can be used by similarly distributed actor modules for decision-making and control processes. Development in this field includes new methods for communication (e.g. protocol stacks, localization) and the realization of cost-efficient, miniaturized components. The realization of new products in an efficient and timely manner is facilitated by the use of modular hardware and software components that allow a quick adaptation to application requirements.

High-frequency measurement chamber at Fraunhofer IMS

The advantages of wireless sensor networks were successfully demonstrated in some projects.

Important applications of **wireless sensor networks** are in the field of:

- Industrial automation, e.g. logistics and inventory control.
- Agriculture e.g. monitoring of air and soil parameters.
- Facility management, e.g. remote monitoring of buildings and infrastructure elements.

Our customers face a number of challenges that are adressed by our R&D activities. One set these activities addresses tools for network development, deployment and maintenance. Others address the field of energy harvesting, the ability to extract module power from the environment and obviating the need for batteries or power cables. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AT THE FRAUNHOFER INSTITUTE FOR MICRO-ELECTRONIC CIRCUITS AND SYSTEMS

LAAAAA



The **transponder systems** unit at the Fraunhofer IMS offers system solutions for the integration of novel portable or stationary transponder read-write devices and base stations into smart network-systems. offering complete system solutions.

These transponder systems are used in smart buildings and vehicles, industrial automation, medical devices and logistics.

It also provides base stations for transponder ASICs with integrated micro sensors developed at Fraunhofer IMS, thus





5. Smart Room & Building-Solutions

At the **Fraunhofer-inHaus-Center**, Europe's leading innovation center for smart homes and buildings, IMS cooperates with six Fraunhofer-Institutes and nearly 100 industrial partners to develop, test and demonstrate innovative solutions of all kinds for different application fields in smart buildings. In detail IMS offers research, development and complete systemssolutions to component and systems manufacturers, builders and operators of homes and commercial buildings for new and added value functions on the basis of electronics and software.

At the **inHaus1-Facility (Smart Home-Lab)** new domotic techniques to control lighting, doors and windows as well as heating and ventilation for energy efficiency in homes are developed and tested. One focus lies on solutions for smart metering for more transparency in energy consumption. In the SmartHome-Segment we have also a lot of experience in the field of user interface solutions for easyer control of technical equipment in homes. User acceptance tests in the smart home lab garantee the new industrial products to have a better success chance on the market.

At the **inHaus2-Facility (Smart Building-Lab)** new technical solutions for commercial properties are being developed, e.g. for new benefits in facility management and building operation, in the operation process of nursery homes, hotels and offices.

One main IMS focus lies on the development of new concepts and electronic systems that provide unobtrusive assistance for elderly and handicapped people in order to maintain a self-determined life at nursery homes with commercial operation and to optimize the care service process. We concentrate especially on solutions like microelectronic sensor networks in rooms with software interpretation of data to get benefits like automatic detection of problems or emergency cases (ambient assisted living AAL).

Another main field of R&D in all inHaus-application segments is energy efficiency, like in the smart home field. In cooperation with component and systems manufacturers and also energy providers next-generation-metering and building automation technologies for energy efficiency are developed, tested and demonstrated.

The inHaus Center offers R&D and complete systems-solutions to builders, modernizers or operators of homes and commercial buildings, to implement complete electronic and ITC systems for new and added value functions. This includes the following aspects:

- Safety and security
- Multimedia
- Support for the elderly
- Energy saving
- Light management

Fraunhofer IMS Annual Report 2010

DEVELOPMENT OF THE IMS

Budget IMS	22
Capital Investment IMS	23
Staff Members IMS	24

DEVELOPMENT FRAUNHOFER IMS





DEVELOPMENT FRAUNHOFER IMS



SELECTED PROJECTS OF THE YEAR 2010

Selected Projects of the Year 2010

I	CMOS Devices and Technology	26
	Silicon Sencors and Microsystems	36
	CMOS Circuits	47
IV	Wireless Chips an Systems	54
V	Systems an Applications	71

MICRO- AND NANOSYSTEM TECHNOLOGIES ON CMOS

H. Vogt, M. Ruß

The semiconductor industry has followed Moore's law since the early 70s. Doubling or even tripling the performance (integration density, speed) every two years through transistor scaling has yielded a better performance-to-cost ratio of products, generating an exponential growth of the semiconductor market. This in turn allowed an increased investment in equipment and processes, again stimulating the scaling. This "More Moore" approach has been accompanied by roadmapping, especially the ITRS roadmap, and is still a driver of the state of the art technology.

Since a few years, however, there is a new trend evolving. Due to the enormous investment and development costs, "Moore More" is handled by a few consortia on a world-wide basis only, concentrating on the large volume markets (memories, processors). In addition a "More than Moore" approach has emerged, where added value to devices is achieved by functionalities that typically do not scale according to "Moore's Law".

Especially in Europe this trend is obvious, where semiconductor companies are seeking their markets by adding power handling capability, robustness or sensing/actuating devices to their CMOS processes. Application areas are to be found in the automotive industry, in industrial or medical electronics, but also in consumer products.

A method to enhance the capability of an integrated device is post-processing or "above–CMOS technology". CMOS wafers serve as "intelligent" substrates. They may contain sensor



readout or driver circuitry, temperature sensors, analogue signal processing, and interfaces to the outside world (analogue, digital, wired or wireless). On top of these CMOS wafers you may now deposit additional layers, structures and devices for sensing and actuating

Compact, "intelligent" micro- and nano-systems will result. Several advantages arise from post-processing:

- Compact sensors contain application specific interfaces
- The ultra short distance between sensor and readout allows detecting very small signals and it allows reading out arrays of sensors.
- Processing is done with proven semiconductor processing equipment, but may include specialized machines and processes
- A large material variety (compared to CMOS) is available
- Sensor/actor manufacturing is quasi independent from CMOS processing, but sensor and circuit functioning are very closely coupled.

To enable IMS following this emerging technology trend and to enable IMS to react to the requests from our R&D customers from the semiconductor industry but also from automotive and industrial users, we have started a project in late 2009 to set up a facility for post-processing at IMS. A 16 million Euro grant from the European Union, the German Federal Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF) and the Ministry of Innovation, Science and Research (MIWF) of North-Rhine-Westphalia is used for establishing a clean room and selecting and installing equipment for post-processing on 200 mm wafers.

600 sqm of former laboratory space have been transformed to a class 10/100 clean room. The challenge was to integrate a raised floor, a wall system, and all facility interconnections despite of the limited height of the existing rooms. Filter fan units provide clean air, a clean wall system separates clean room and service area.

MEMS fabrication will use equipment sets for lithography, deposition, etching, metrology and packaging partly similar to CMOS, partly dedicated to new MEMS processes. Lithography uses 1:1 proximity and a 5:1 wafer stepper, both with front to back alignment capability. The stepper is unique in that additionally to 350nm resolution the front to back accuracy is better than 175nm. Thin and thick photo resist as well as polyimide and red/green/blue colour filters may be processed. Deposition systems range from CVD of dielectric and semiconductor layers to sputtering, evaporation and atomic layer deposition (ALD). Whereas ALD provides high precision thin metal or dielectric films, electroplating yields Cu, Sn, Ni, and Au layers up to several µm thick. Plasma etching is used to pattern metal or dielectric layers. Unique to MEMS processing are Ion Beam etching and Deep Reactive Ion Etching. DRIE offers bulk micro-machining and etching for Through Silicon Vias.

A set of metrology systems guarantees reproducible processing and a quick feedback for process development.

Packaging equipment, using this term in a very broad sense, comprises of wafer-to-wafer bonding, chip to wafer bonding, grinding and thinning for chip scale packages, but also for structures made of single crystalline semiconductor layers and devices on top of the CMOS wafer.

At the end of 2010, the new clean room is now "ready for equipment". Most of the machines cited above have been ordered, several are already delivered and have been installed, basic processes are available, and several projects are well on the way to support our customers.

The developments we are offering range from consulting, delivery of individual process steps for process modules, both

interesting for semiconductor and MEMS companies, to the development and delivery of complete sensors on CMOS dedicated to industrial, automotive and medical users.

Two groups of scientists and technicians support the new MEMS facility. The operating group cares for machine installation, maintenance, and process step development as well as organising clean room and facility operations. The MEMS development group devises new device concepts from specification over simulation, prototype fabrication, characterization and tests. Close cooperation with the CMOS development groups, CMOS operations and facility allows the MST lab to benefit from synergy effects and guarantees true integration of sensors and actuators on top of our CMOS. Last but not least our circuit design groups at IMS contribute their know-how in analogue and mixed signal circuits to complete the developments on fully integrated single chip "intelligent" micro- and nano-systems.

Several projects have already been started or even finished in the new facility. We have developed a doped amorphous silicon layer to be integrated onto custom CMOS wafers stemming from a silicon foundry. Finally this layer was transferred to our customer's facility. Electroplating is used to enhance CMOS current driving capability and as a basis for SLID technology (soldering with solid liquid interdiffusion).

Pressure sensors and optical sensors will be integrated on top of our CMOS wafers. The most complex process developed so far serves the integration of a micro-bolometer array on top a readout circuit.

The cross section in Fig 2 depicts typical steps of CMOS followed by post-processing to integrate a sensor on top: a planarised surface of the CMOS, followed by additional metal layers, surface micro-machining exploiting a sacrificial layer with the thin sensor membrane on top and provisions to allow chip scale packaging. In addition we are working on bio-sensors integrating highly specific detection layers to

CMOS DEVICES AND TECHNOLOGIE MICRO- AND NANOSYSTEM TECHNOLOGIES ON CMOS



Figure 2: Microbolometers on top of CMOS readout

get marker free sensors. Nano-structures like semiconductor nano wires or carbon nano tubes will be applied to enhance sensitivity.

Post-processing on CMOS is the way IMS has chosen to advance CMOS applicability, to generate new devices and to serve our customers. The new Microsystems facility at IMS is ideally suited to support this goal.

CMOS-BASED EUV SENSOR

F. Hochschulz, U. Paschen, H. Vogt

Introduction

The detection of light in the extreme ultraviolet region of the spectrum (EUV or XUV, 4 – 50 nm) is not possible with standard front side illuminated CMOS image sensors as the radiation is almost completely absorbed in the dielectric layers that cover the silicon. This required the use of back-thinned and backside illuminated image sensors or focused ion beam (FIB) procedures for EUV image sensors. With the development of the deep optical stack etching (DOSE) process enhancement the production of pure CMOS front side illuminated EUV photo diodes has been enabled.

Applications

The detection of EUV radiation is part of many scientific research efforts, for example solar EUV imaging or microscopy of biological samples in the so called water window (2.3 – 4.4 nm) where water becomes transparent but carbon absorbs the radiation. Radiation with 13.5 nm is also used in the next generation lithography called EUV-L, which is supposed to be used for technology nodes with feature sizes of 15 nm and below. EUV-L still suffers from many unsolved problems, one of which is the inspection speed of masks and mask blanks. The DOSE process enhancement allows the development of specific image sensors for the mentioned applications, for example fast yet sensitive image sensors for EUV-L mask blank inspection.

The process

The underlying CMOS process used for the DOSE process is a 0.35 µm mixed signal process. For the DOSE process a polysilicon layer is deposited in photo active regions and the chip is processed until the pad opening. At this point a photoresist is applied and the pad areas are opened together with the photoactive areas lithographically. Using the standard pad opening etch the silicon nitride passivation is removed completely and the silicon oxide is removed partly in photo active regions. After a reapplication of the resist only the photo active regions are opened lithographically. Subsequently the remaining oxide on top of the polysilicon stopping layer and the stopping layer itself are removed. This leaves only a thin thermal oxide on top of the silicon in photoactive regions. This thin thermal oxide serves as an etch stop and protects the silicon surface. A shematic illustration of the DOSE process is shown in Figure 1, a SEM image of 7 μ m x 7 μ m DOSE photo diodes is shown in Figure 2.



Figure 1. Schematic illustration of the DOSE process. a) CMOS process until pad opening. b) Photo resist is applied, pad regions are opened together with photoactive regions lithographically and pad etching is performed. c) Photo resist is reapplied, photoactive regions are opened lithographically, remaining layers (oxide and polysilicon) are etched.



Figure 2: SEM cross section of DOSE photo diodes with a size of 7 μm x 7 $\mu m.$

CMOS DEVICES AND TECHNOLOGY CMOS-BASED EUV SENSOR



Figure 3: Sensitivity of an array of 43 x 43 DOSE photo diodes with a size of 7 μ m x 7 μ m compared to a simulation. The quantum efficiency is the amount of detected electron hole pairs divided by the number of impinging photons and the amount of electron hole pairs that are generated per absorbed photon. This amount is calculated using a mean electron-hole pair creation energy of 3.7 eV.

Sensitivity measurements

The sensitivity of a photo diode can be described by its quantum efficiency. The quantum efficiency is the amount of electrons detected per impinging photon, divided by the number of electron hole pairs that are generated upon absorption of a photon. It is calculated from the photon energy, the photo current of the diode (corrected by the dark current and in this case without external bias), the beam power that hits the photo diode and the number of electron hole pairs that are generated per absorbed photon. The quantum efficiency of DOSE photo diodes has been characterized at the PTB's (Physikalisch Technische Bundesanstalt) XUV beamline at BESSY II, Berlin, in cooperation with the Fraunhofer ILT. The result for an array of 43 x 43 diodes with a size of 7 μ m x 7 μ m is shown in Figure 3. A quantum efficiency of around 50% at 13.5 nm is obtained, which is comparable to state of the art backside illuminated image sensors.

Conclusion and Outlook

Using the DOSE process extension photo diodes have been manufactured employing only common CMOS fabrication tools, which feature sensitivity to EUV radiation comparable to state of the art backside illuminated image sensors. As no expensive back-thinning or FIB processes are needed, this allows the development of cheaper application specific image sensors. Currently an imager with DOSE photo diodes is planned that will feature an increased frame rate compared to available EUV image sensors. The sensor will feature a resolution of 1280 x 960 pixels, a pixel pitch of 12 µm and a maximum frame rate of 200 fps. It is designed to improve, for example, the scan speed of inspection tools in this wavelength range.

Future work will focus on reducing the thickness of the thermal oxide in photo active areas in order to improve the sensitivity.

THERMALLY ISOLATED MONO-CRYSTALLINE SILICON DIODES AS DETECTORS FOR MICROBOLOMETERS

P. Kropelnick

Bolometers are used as sensing elements for the detection of IR-radiation in the LWIR (8 ... 14µm) range. A new kind of diode bolometer can increase the thermal resolution of infrared detectors by reducing the noise of the sensor element. This is achieved by using a mono-crystalline substrate for the bolometer instead of an amorphous sensing layer which is typically employed in conventional bolometers. A mono-crystalline diode reduces the 1/f-noise and therefore increase the signal to noise ratio. The diode bolometer can be integrated by post-processing into a process flow based on CMOS-readout circuits to ensure mass production.

Introduction

Amorphous silicon [1] or vanadium oxide [2] are frequently used as the temperature sensing materials for standard microbolometers. The drawback of these amorphous materials is their high electrical 1/f-noise, which limits the signal to noise ratio. A promising way to limit 1/f noise is the use of mono-crystalline materials and it has been shown that diode microbolometers can be formed in mono-crystalline silicon [3]. However, the need for thermal isolation requires that the diodes are suspended from the bulk material by removing the underlying silicon substrate material. This limits the fill factor and makes it impossible to have a CMOS read-out circuitry directly under the pixel. A solution to this problem is to bond an additional sensor wafer to the wafer containing the CMOS read out circuit [4]. This approach combines a high fill factor and the possibility to integrate the read-out circuit in the proximity of the pixel with a mono-crystalline sensing material. Fraunhofer-IMS has developed a thermally isolated singlecrystal silicon diode as a detector for microbolometers.

Test-structure

To determine the characteristics of the diode bolometer different single-crystal SOI diode test structures have been fabricated as shown in Fig. 1. It is possible to use this kind of test structure due to the fact that the thermal and electrical characteristics of a mono-crystal SOI diode test structure are very similar to those of a diode bolometer, but without the need for a sacrificial etch process. An typical geometry of such a test diode is shown in Fig. 2.







Fig.2: Top view (left) and technological cross section (right) of a SOI-pin-diode test structure

CMOS DEVICES AND TECHNOLOGY

THERMALLY ISOLATED MONO-CRYSTALLINE SILICON DIODES AS DETECTORS FOR MICROBOLOMETERS

Temperature DC-model

A complex diode model of the temperature dependent IVcharacteristic of a SOI-pin-diode is shown Fig. 3.



Fig.3: Temperature dependent DC-model for a SOI-pin-diode test structure and diode bolometer

This model describes the change of the ideality factor and the saturation current as a function of the temperature and the operating point. The comparison of the measured and modeled temperature dependent IV-characteristic is depicted Fig. 4.



DC-characteristic

Using the spice simulation software it is possible to numerically determine the temperature coefficient of the current as shown in Fig. 5.



Fig.5: Temperature coefficient of the diode current as a function of temperature and voltage

Noise

The thermal resolution of an IR-detector based on a diode bolometer is limited by the noise of the pn-junction. To determine the noise of the component, even at extremely low frequencies, a noise measurement station is necessary (Fig. 6). A good shield against low-frequency electromagnetic radiation is achieved by using an enclosure consisting of two layers, Mu-metal and aluminum. With this measurement setup it is possible to measure noise down to 10⁻²⁶ A²/Hz and with frequencies as low as 10⁻¹ Hz.

Readout-circuit

Typically, bolometers are read out by an integrator which converts the electrical current change due to infrared radiation into an analog voltage. This read out principle is used for the determination of the theoretical thermal resolution. It is shown that the influence of the shot-noise with respect to the resolution decreases clearly with higher currents of the diode bolometer. However, with higher bolometer currents, the negative influence of the 1/f-noise regarding the resolution



Fig.6: Noise measurement setup for noise determination of diodes

gets stronger and the decreasing temperature coefficient strengthens this effect. Measurements using test structures indicate a possible NETD of <100mK.

Process flow

A "low temperature direct wafer bond" process step was developed to enable the production of the mono-crystalline diode bolometer (Fig. 7).



This process step facilitates the bonding of the SOI sensor wafer with the CMOS wafer at low temperatures. Subsequently, during the wafer-grinding step, the back-side of the silicon based sensor wafer is grinded down to 5µm over the buried oxide. This is done so that the silicon can be selectively etched away afterwards. The remaining mono-crystalline bolometer membrane itself, which is placed above the CMOS wafer, can then be electrically connected with the CMOS wafer (Fig. 8).



Fig.8: Bonded and grinded sensor- and COMS-wafer (left), electrical contact between both wafer (right)

Fig. 9 shows the geometry structure of a diode bolometer.



MOS DEVICES AND TECHNOLOGIE THERMALLY ISOLATED MONO-CRYSTALLINE SILICON DIODES AS DETECTORS FOR MICROBOLOMETERS

In a final release step, the membrane can be thermally isolated from the substrate by removing the sacrificial layer as shown in Fig. 10.



Fig.10: Contact plug of a diode bolometer (left), array of released diode bolometers (right)

Vacuum package

To reduce thermal losses by gas convection a vacuum package is required. To realize a reliable vacuum package a bond between a ceramic casing and a silicon lid, achieved by hard soldering the pieces together, is used. The principle of the vacuum package is shown in Fig. 11.



Fig.11: Schematic illustration of a vacuum package

The measured vacuum level reaches p<1x10-2 mbar. This vacuum level fulfills the requirements for the thermal isolation of a bolometer. To ensure the long term stability a getter is included inside the package. Fig. 12 shows the finished vacuum package.



Fig.12: Ceramic vacuum package after lid soldering

Conclusion

A full process flow for fabricating a mono-crystalline diode bolometer has been established, which is capable to integrate diode bolometer elements above a CMOS-circuit and therefore maximizes the fill-factor of an array. Also, a simple way to realize a Fabry-Perot structure to increase the IR-absorption can be achieved with this process flow. Due to low thermally conductive materials in the bolometer legs, a high thermal isolation can be realized. Diode bolometers can be used as the sensing element of an IR-detector with a high temperature coefficient of current and a low 1/f-noise and therefore a very low NETD.

References

- Brady, J. "Advances in amorphous silicon uncooled IR systems," SPIE Infrared Technology and Application XXV 3698, pp. 161–167, 1999.
- [2] Pope, T. D. "Commercial and custom 160 × 120, 251 × 1 and 512 × 3 pixel bolometric FPAs," Proceeding of the Infrared Detectors and Focal Plane Arrays VII, SPIE vol. 4721, pp. 64–74, 2002.
- [3] Ishikawa, T. "Low-Cost 320 x 240 Uncooled IRFPA Using Conventional Silicon IC Process," Proc. SPIE, Vol. 3689, pp. 556–564, 1999.
- [4] "Monocrystalline Diode Bolometer made by Low Temperature Direct Wafer Bonding", Piotr Kropelnicki,
 H. Vogt, Fraunhofer IMS, Duisburg, Conference on Wafer Bonding for Microsystems 3D- and Wafer Level Integration, Grenoble, 2009.
POST-CMOS MEMS INTEGRATION BASED ON NOVEL APPROACH WITH GE MICROMECHANICS

Q. Wang, A. Goehlich, H.-K. Trieu

Abstract

In order to avoid high-temperature-induced degradation of metal interconnects, transistors and other components in CMOS circuits, low temperature processes have to be applied for the post-CMOS integration of MEMS (Microelectromechanical systems). At Fraunhofer IMS novel approaches for the post-CMOS MEMS integration on the basis of silicongermanium (SiGe) and germanium (Ge) were developed. Poly-SiGe films were deposited with a PECVD process at the substrate temperature of around 380 °C, and poly-Ge films were deposited with PECVD at the substrate temperature of around 340 °C. Capacitive pressure sensor elements with membranes of PECVD poly-SiGe and PECVD poly-Ge were fabricated. Due to the low deposition temperature of SiGe and Ge, a temperature budget of only 24 minutes at 380 °C in the case of SiGe membrane pressure sensor, and a temperature budget of only 26 minutes at 340 °C for Ge membrane sensor resulted. Sensor structures were examined with respect to the pressure sensitivity. It was found, that the mechanical properties of the structures with the SiGe or Ge membranes are comparable to the poly-Si structures. Poly-SiGe and poly-Ge films were deposited on metal interconnections in order to form direct electrical contact with the lower metal level. A viaresistance of circa 240 Ω of a poly-Ge via on Ti was measured. The via had a cross section area of 1.5 µm² and a height of 900nm. The demonstrated integration process performed with the low temperature depositions of poly-SiGe and poly-Ge is suitable for the post-CMOS integration of various MEMS structures.

Low-Temperature PECVD of poly-SiGe and poly-Ge films

It was reported, that the deposition of poly-SiGe and poly-Ge films can be carried out at temperatures lower than 450 °C with the LPCVD method [1], or with the PECVD method using pre-deposited LPCVD seed layer [2]. It was observed in this study, that poly-SiGe and poly-Ge films can be deposited at the substrate temperatures as low as 380 °C (for poly-SiGe) or 340 °C (for poly-Ge) solely with the PECVD method, if appropriate deposition parameters are chosen. The main

advantage of PECVD method as compared to the LPCVD method is the much higher deposition rate of the former, which effectively reduces the thermal budget of the process. The typical deposition rate of LPCVD SiGe is about 0.6 nm/s [2] as compared to a deposition rate of 7.6 nm/s for poly-SiGe, and 5 nm/s for poly-Ge with the PECVD method, that were demonstrated during this study. In comparison to the method using pre-deposited LPCVD seed layer, our process takes less time, and it is also simpler. The resistivity of the in situ boron-doped poly-SiGe film is about 1.2 m Ω -cm, and that of the poly-Ge film is about 0.8 m Ω -cm.





Figure 1: A simplified process flow for the production of the free standing structures sealed with SiGe or Ge. a) dummy wafer with PECVD silicon nitride; b) sacrifial oxide for the spacer of the "capacitors" and the etch channels are deposited and structured; c) poly-SiGe or poly-Ge films are deposited and structured; d) sacrificial oxide is removed; e) "capacitors" are sealed in vacuum using CVD SiGe or CVD Ge.

In order to verify the deposition process and the properties of the films, capacitive pressure sensor structures were produced. A schematic process flow of the fabrication of the pressure sensors is illustrated in Figure 1. To simulate wafers with completed CMOS electronics, silicon wafers with PECVD silicon nitride on top of them were used. A surface micromachined pressure sensor process at Fraunhofer IMS was modified, and utilized for the demonstration. The structure layer of the membranes was in situ boron-doped poly-SiGe or poly-Ge films. The stress of the films was optimized in such a way, that the structure layer bends lightly to the substrate, after the sacrificial oxide was removed. The capacitor structures were sealed with CVD SiGe or CVD Ge. A measurement of the central deflection of the membranes under different pressure load is depicted in Figure 2 for both materials. A linear dependence of the deflection on the applied pressure was observed. The pressure sensitivity (center deflection/bar) for both types of membranes yields a value of about 200 nm/bar.



Figure 2: Central deflection of SiGe and Ge membranes under different pressures.

Vias of poly-SiGe and poly-Ge



A further aspect of the post-CMOS integration of MEMS concerns the connection of the MEMS with the CMOS electronics. It is possible to in situ dope the poly-SiGe and poly-Ge films in order to generate highly conductive films. Therefore it is possible to deposit these films directly on metal lines in order to form the interconnection between MEMS and the lower metal level and consequently the connection between MEMS and CMOS electronics [3]. This technology was also demonstrated in this study. In Figure 3 a simplified schematic illustration of a via of poly-SiGe or poly-Ge is shown. The metal, which was in direct contact with the poly-SiGe or poly-Ge, was titanium, which guaranteed a good adhesion of the SiGe or Ge films on it. The resistance of the vias were measured by Kelvin via structures. In Figure 4, the measurement of a poly-Ge via, which has a cross section area of 1.5 μ m² and a height of 900nm, is shown. The measured value of the resistance of the via amounts to approximately 240 Ω at a current of 5 mA.

SILICON SENSORS AND MICROSYSTEMS

POST-CMOS MEMS INTEGRATION BASED ON NOVEL APPROACH WITH GE MICROMECHANICS



Figure 4: Via resistances of a poly-Ge via at different currents. The via has a cross section area of 1.5 μ m² and a height of 900 nm.

Conclusion and prospect

With the successful fabrication of capacitive pressure sensor structures and vias of poly SiGe and poly Ge on metal, it was demonstrated, that the integration process based on the low temperature PECVD deposition of in-situ doped poly-SiGe and poly-Ge films is very promising for the post-CMOS integration of MEMS-structures. Therefore it is an interesting method to produce smart sensors and actuators, which can be more compact and can have more functionalities and smaller sizes.

References:

- H. Takeuchi, E. Quévy, S. A. Bhave, T. J. King, und R. T. Howe, "Ge-blade damascene process for post-CMOS integration of nano-mechanical resonators," Electron Device Letters, IEEE, Bd. 25, Nr. 8, S. 529–531, 2004.
- [2] B. Guo u. a., "Improvement of PECVD Silicon–Germanium Crystallization for CMOS Compatible MEMS Applications," Journal of The Electrochemical Society, Bd. 157, S. D103, 2010.
- [3] H. Vogt, M. Ruß, und Q. Wang, "german patent application 102010029290.7 OPTISCHE EMPFÄNGERSTRUKTUR UND VERFAHREN ZUM HERSTELLEN DERSELBEN."

UniHealth – UNIVERSAL SENSOR SYSTEM FOR THE DETECTION OF ALLERGENS AND BIOMARKERS

C. Jonville, R. Klieber, A. Goehlich, H.-K. Trieu

The area of biosensors lies at the interface of physic sciences, technology development and biology. Bridging the knowledge and know-how together will enable biosensor systems which will provide not only sensitivity, selectivity and reliability but also portability at reasonable costs. Micro Electro Mechanical Systems (MEMS) are producible on a large scale, easily fully integrated and can provide rapid responses (1). They are superior to comparatively bulky and expensive laboratory equipment such as enzyme-linked immunosorbent assays (ELISA). Integrated MEMS can provide results through direct electrical measurement and do not require fluorescence testing. Therefore, they can bring the analysis closer to the end user allowing Point of Care Testing (POCT).

Aims of the project:

The UniHealth project aims at developing a label-free biosensor prototype for POCT. The first application is the detection of allergens in foods. The gluten protein has been chosen because 0,7 to 2 % of Europeans are affected by the Caeliac Disease that generates inflammatory reactions of the digestive system in the presence of gluten. Another allergen is the papain protein present in exotic fruits such as papaya and kiwi. The sensor will be able to tell if foods contain low enough concentration of allergens therefore if they can be consumed by the allergic user.

The second application concerns the detection of the antiangliosid antibody that reveals the Guillain-Barré syndrome. It is an autoimmune disorder affecting the peripheral nervous system that can cause paralysis. It has an incidence of 1 or 2 persons per 100 000. This biosensor system will be used by doctors in their surgeries or in hospitals.

Sensor system:

The complete sensor system will consist of three parts. Firstly, a preparation step is needed to convert the sample to a liquid form. A device will be developed or adapted from an existing product that will shred, filter and mix the sample with a buffer solution. In this way the user will be able to analyse a wide range of food samples. Secondly, a device will be developed that will contain the microfluidics necessary to handle the liquids (such as pumps, tubings and micro-channels) as well as the measuring and communication circuits. It will be coupled to a handheld (for example a smart phone) or a computer. The calculation and display of results will be carried out by a program developed on the corresponding operating system. Finally, a remorable cartridge comprising the functionalised sensor arrays will be inserted for the measurements.

Principle of operation:

The natural resonance frequency of a circular membrane can be expressed as a function of material properties and dimensions (2).

$$f_0 = \frac{40.8 \ t}{2 \ \pi \ d^2} \sqrt{\frac{E}{12(1-\nu^2)\rho}} = \frac{10.2}{\sqrt{\pi}} \frac{t^{3/2}}{d} \sqrt{\frac{E}{12(1-\nu^2)\rho}}$$

Where f_0 is the natural resonance frequency of the membrane, E the Young modulus, ν the Poisson coefficient, ρ the density of the material and m its unloaded mass. The dimensions t and d are the thickness and diameter, respectively. From this formula, it is derived that a shift in mass Δm induces a shift in frequency Δf proportional to the added mass. In addition, replacing m and f_0 , it follows that the mass sensitivity R is strongly dependent on the diameter (R \propto d⁻⁴) but independent of the thickness.

$$\frac{\partial f_0}{\partial m} = -\frac{1}{2} \frac{f_0}{m}$$
$$\Delta f = -\frac{1}{2} \frac{\Delta m}{m} f_0$$
$$R = \frac{\Delta f}{\Delta m} = -\frac{40.8}{\pi^2 \rho^{3/2} d^4} \sqrt{\frac{E}{12(1-\nu^2)}}$$

SILICON SENSORS AND MICROSYSTEMS UniHealth – UNIVERSAL SENSOR SYSTEM FOR THE DETECTION OF ALLERGENS AND BIOMARKERS

The operation principle of the sensor relies on this resonant sensing. The sensor element consists of a free-standing polysilicon circular membrane that can be electrostatically actuated and a selective layer on its surface. This layer will capture only one specific analyte (one of the above-mentioned molecules). In presence of the analyte, the resonance frequency will shift due to the captured additional mass. The membrane and the bottom substrate electrode form a capacitance whose value varies with the deflection of the membrane. Figure 1 illustrates the schematic cross section of the sensor. An integrated circuit measures and analyses the resulting signal. The element and circuits are produced using the IMS pressure sensor 1,2 μ m technology and the surface is functionalised by several post-processing chemical steps.



Figure 1: Schematic cross section of the sensor. The poly-silicon membrane is depicted in blue and the bottom substrate electrode in yellow. The sensor is excited with a sine signal with an offset.

The surface functionalisation will be performed with expertised collaboration partners as the Radbout University Nijmegen and the Wagenigen University within the framework of the UniHealth project.

Proof of concept:

To demonstrate the principle of operation, silicon dioxide bumps of different sizes have been deposited onto individual membranes by Focused Ion Beam (FIB). The size of the bumps has been measured and thus the added mass could be estimated. A $6 \times 6 \times 1 \mu m^3 SiO_2$ post deposited in the center of a membrane surface is shown in figure 2. It corresponds to a mass of approximately 93 pg.



Figure 2: Optical interferometry image of a SiO₂ post deposited in the middle of a membrane of about 96 μ m in diameter.

The membranes have a diameter of about 96 μ m, are 1 μ m thick and have a mass of about 20 ng. The smallest added mass represents less than 0,1% of the membrane mass. The sensor chip is mounted in a ceramic package that is then contacted to the actuation and measurement equipment through a printed circuit board. The experimental set-up is shown in figure 3. The sample is placed in a chamber that has several inlets for an external pressure monitoring and electrical cabling to the sensor. It is possible to measure in vacuum conditions. The deflection of the poly-silicon membrane is measured



Figure 3: Measurement set-up for the proof of concept experiment showing the sample chamber with the inlets for electrical actuation and pressure monitoring. The interferometry microscope measures the deflection of the membrane through a glass window. through a glass window by optical interferometry while the frequency is scanned. The sensors are actuated by a sinusoidal signal of 3V amplitude.

Figure 4 shows the deflection vs. frequency measurements for four membranes at atmospheric pressure. It is observed that the additional mass induces a shift in the resonance frequency peak. The resonance frequency lies around 2,5 MHz.



Figure 4: Deflection amplitude as a function of frequency of 96 μ m membranes with different silicon oxide masses deposited by FIB. The deflection has been measured by optical interferometry at atmospheric pressure and the excitation is a sinusoidal signal of 3V amplitude.

The resonance frequency in function of the added mass values is depicted in figure 5. The sensor membranes exhibit a mass sensitivity of about 680 Hz/pg when the data is linearly fitted. This is promising since it is exceeding the published theoretical value of 30,2 kHz/pg for 18 μ m diameter membranes resonating at 18 MHz (3). Indeed, taking into account the dependence of the sensitivity with the diameter and assuming the material is the same, the equivalent sensitivity would be 37 Hz/pg for a 96 μ m diameter membrane. In addition, the membranes produced by the IMS 1,2 μ m technology have the advantage of operating at lower frequencies, requiring less operating voltage and the sensors can be monolithically integrated with read-out circuitry.

Sensitivity:
$$R = \frac{\Delta f}{\Delta m} = -680 \text{ Hz/pg}$$



Figure 5: Extracted resonance frequency in function of the added mass.

Conclusion and outlook:

The utilisation of resonant sensing and the Fraunhofer IMS pressure sensor membranes as a signal transducer shows promising results for bio-sensing applications. In addition, the MEMS structures can be mass produced using a CMOScompatible process thus providing the wished integration of measurement and signal processing circuits. Furthermore, it can be used as a biosensor platform since different surface functionalisations, applied after the semiconductor fabrication steps, can provide the selective recognition of biomolecules such as allergens or biomarkers.

The next steps of the project are to demonstrate the operation with electrical measurement and in fluids. Then functionalised surfaces will be used to verify the effect of the binding of the

SILICON SENSORS AND MICROSYSTEMS UniHealth – UNIVERSAL SENSOR SYSTEM FOR THE DETECTION OF ALLERGENS AND BIOMARKERS

target molecules. Finally, the sensor element will be integrated in a resonator circuit that will output the real-time resonance frequency.

This work is co-financed by the INTERREG IV A Germany-Netherlands programme through the EU funding from the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF), the Ministry for Economic Affairs, Energy, Building, Housing and Transport of the State of North-Rhine Westphalia and the Dutch Ministry of Economic Affairs and the Province of Gelderland. It is accompanied by the program management Euregio Rhein-Waal.

References:

- [1]: M. Li, H.X. Tang and M.L. Roukes "Ultra-sensitive NEMS-based cantilevers for sensing, scanned probe and high-frequency application", Nature Nanotechnology, vol. 2, 2007
- [2]: S. Timoshenko, D.H. Young and W. Weaver, Jr "Vibration problems in engineering" 1974, Wiley
- [3]: K.K. Park, H.J. Lee, M. Kupnik, Ö. Oralkan and B.T. Khuri-Yakub, "Capacitive Micromachined Utrasonic Transducer as a Chemical Sensor", IEEE Sensors 2008 Conference

BUILDING THE FUTURE OF CMOS IMAGERS

J. Fink, W. Brockherde

Since the institute's foundation in the mid 1980's the scientists at the Fraunhofer IMS have been dedicated to furthering the evolution of CMOS electronics and CMOS process technology. Following this tradition of innovative, leading-edge research, Fraunhofer IMS in 2009 became one of the founding members of the High Dynamic Range Low Noise (HiDRaLoN) project. Together with 15 partners from leading institutions across Europe, Fraunhofer IMS is currently working to establish a new generation of high dynamic range imagers catering to a multitude of applications. Covering fields like novel X-ray and computed tomography imagers, HD broadcast camera chips, lenses and correction algorithms as well as machine vision systems and 3D imaging systems, HiDRaLoN will push the limits of available CMOS imager technology to a new level.

1. Project overview

1.1. Project goals

Currently different driving forces can be identified on the CMOS imager market. For example high definition camera systems are constantly pushing the requirements for imager resolution and readout speeds. In addition, emerging technologies for 3D applications call for sub-pixelation and lenticular lenses on top of the imagers. Furthermore, industrial automation applications require advances in dynamic range to be able to cope with adverse lighting scenarios. Hence, the most urgent needs of the industry can be boiled down to a miniaturization of the pixel cell at a simultaneous increase of the pixel performance and the in-pixel signal processing power. Although the details of custom implementations for certain applications may differ, high dynamic range and low noise are always of key importance at any stage in the imager design and evaluation cycle. Thus, combining the research efforts and experience of many of Europe's major imager designers, HiDRaLoN aims at generating mutual benefits in terms of pixel and imager technology, modeling of electrical and optical crosstalk and correction algorithms.

With these considerations in mind the HiDRaLoN consortium has set a number of project goals to be reached within the three year project duration. First of all the efforts are focused on improving the dynamic range of CMOS imagers up to 120 dB whilst cutting their noise by 50 per cent and still maintaining crucial properties like resolution, sensitivity, low image lag and high quality. Reflecting the aforementioned wide range of target applications, sub-clusters among the project partners have been established in order to develop a total of five custom imagers for the medical, broadcast, 3D vision, machine and industrial vision segments. At the end of the project three imagers will demonstrate the improved performance in the 3D vision, medical and broadcast markets. The project work is rounded off by detailed work on imager and lens defect correction algorithms as well as interconnect and system design studies.

1.2. HiDRaLoN project organization

As illustrated in Figure 1, the HiDRaLoN consortium incorporates eight European companies, who are active in the field of imager or camera design. Apart from these industrial partners, five research institutes and universities as well as one corporate research center are also involved in the project (see Figure 2). The close collaboration of all partners guarantees a high degree of know-how exchange via regular meetings, reporting cycles and a constant supervision by both public funding authorities and the Catrene office.



SILICON SENSORS AND MICROSYSTEMS BUILDING THE FUTURE OF CMOS IMAGERS



Figure 2 Overview of the HiDRaLoN research and university institutions.

One special feature of the project is that, due to its high impact and visibility, it has attracted over 10 European companies to the adjoined user group. These companies are seeking to secure their position in their respective markets by having regular exchanges with the project partners and by having direct access to the project results.

Within the project Fraunhofer IMS coordinates all specification, benchmarking and modeling work. Furthermore, the institute also holds an unique position among the partners as it is the only institution which maintains a CMOS production facility and can therefore cover all project phases from design and simulation to chip production and assembly in-house. Regarding the research activities in HiDRaLoN Fraunhofer IMS is mainly involved in the area of 3D vision imagers for automotive, logistics, safety/security and entertainment applications. The following section will present a general overview over this imaging concept and the related detector technology.

2. 3D Time-of-Flight imaging

2.1. Introduction

Due to increased level of automation in modern fabrication and logistics chains as well as in driver-assistance systems for automotive applications and in controller-free human-computer interfaces, 3D range measurements are quickly gaining ground. To address these needs Fraunhofer IMS propagates a measurement approach based on pulsed laser light, which, similar to Radar or Lidar applications, is reflected from a distant object and thus allows the determination of the object's position relative to the observer. However, as it relies on an active measurement method with a pulsed laser beam, this concept can circumvent limitations present in continuous-wave laser illumination systems or in fully passive 3D vision methods like stereoscopy. In detail, the hardware requirements of pulsed 3D Time-of-Flight (ToF) devices are significantly lower compared to stereoscopic systems, as only one camera with a simple laser diode setup and only very little CPU processing power are required. The advantages of 3D ToF measurements with pulsed laser light over continuous-wave illumination lie in the non-ambiguous range information, the inherent background light suppression and the easier compliance to eye safety regulations. The last point is based on the fact that the invisible IR-laser beam, which, albeit being quite powerful, is only active for a few dozen nanoseconds and therefore does not harm the retina.

2.2. Technological advances

In spite of the rather simple 3D ToF principle, which is basically only a runtime experiment, regular photodetector elements are unsuited for 3D ToF measurements. The cornerstone of a distance measurement with pulsed laser light is the speed of the photodetector element. Here speed does not only refer to the time it takes for the generated charge carriers to reach the readout node but also to the ability to almost instantaneously switch between different such nodes. Figure 3 illustrates these points on a novel detector structure proposed by Fraunhofer IMS. As shown, the so-called lateral drift-field photodiode features a lateral doping concentration gradient along the photosensitive area. This gradient is introduced in a single, additional implantation step and it generates a lateral drift-field, which quickly sweeps the charge carriers towards the collection gate (CG).

By this means the LDPD significantly speeds up charge collection compared to regular diffusion-based photodetectors. Figure 4 shows a measurement of the charge collection times in different sensor structures. It is evident that under 3D ToF







Figure 4 Indirect measurement of the charge collection time in three different pixel structures. ($T_{LDPD} = 30 \text{ ns}$; $T_{PPD} = 60 \text{ ns}$; $T_{PG} = 120 \text{ ns}$).

conditions, i.e. 30 ns laser pulses at approximately 900 nm wavelength, the LDPD surpasses the charge collection performance of an equally large photogate (PG) structure by a factor of 4 and that of a pinned photodiode (PPD) by a factor of 2. Having explained one aspect of the speed requirements, it is possible to address the second problem. Figure 5 illustrates the general clocking scheme of a 3D ToF sensor operating with pulsed laser light. Initally a laser pulse of width T_{Pulse} is emitted by the system. It then takes the light a certain amount of time T_d to travel to a distant object and to return to the imager. By synchronizing the readout of the detector to the emitted laser pulse, the distance information can be obtained. This is handled through two CCD-like transfer gate (TG) structures, which steer the generated charges either into the floating diffusion (FD) readout nodes 1 or 2. As shown, part of the reflected pulse is detected in FD1 and the rest is accumulated in FD2. The difference signal between FD1 and FD2 finally constitutes the distance information. This fast switching reguirement was tested experimentally under laser illumination. Figure 6 shows the device's signal amplitude as a function of the delay time T_d . Considering FD1 it is evident that basically all charges are collected in FD1, if no delay between incoming and returning pulse is present, i.e. if the distance is zero. On the other hand if it takes the light more than 30ns to travel to the object and back, all charge is seen in readout node FD2, which is also according to expectation.

Note that this measurement approach provides valuable additional information, as it also yields a measure of the objects reflectivity. With the ratio of FD1 to FD2 giving the distance information and the sum of both signals determining the reflectivity, possibly erroneous distance measurements can be prevented.

Apart from the improvement in device speed, the proposed concept also exhibits low noise levels. This is because the p+ implantation in the photoactive region pushes the potential maximum away from the surface and thus limits recombination effects.

SILICON SENSORS AND MICROSYSTEMS BUILDING THE FUTURE OF CMOS IMAGERS



Figure 5 Simplified clocking scheme of a pulsed 3D ToF sensor.



Figure 6 Time-of-Flight operation of a LDPD structure.

Even though already the first results obtained with LDPD structures on the test chip shown in Figure 7 look very promising, Fraunhofer IMS is also currently optimizing and evaluating standard photodetector structures like PG and PPD for 3D ToF applications.

3. Conclusion

With the HiDRaLoN project the Fraunhofer IMS advances its role as one of Europe's key centers for CMOS imaging technology and simultaneously maintains a close connection to many European imager designers. In the field of 3D Time-of-Flight imaging novel technologies, which will benefit a wide range of applications, are currently under research.

Funding

This work is supported by the German Federal Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF) under the IKT 2020 initiative.



Figure 7 Layout of a 3D ToF test chip with PG, PPD and LDPD pixels.

AN 868 MHz PASSIVE TEMPERATURE SENSING TRANSPONDER USING A SELF-BIASING UHF RECTIFIER WITH – 10.5 dBm SENSITIVITY IN LOW-COST 0.35 µm CMOS

T. Feldengut, S. Kolnsberg, R. Kokozinski

Wireless energy transmission via electromagnetic waves can be used to generate the supply voltage for micro-power ASICs such as RFID tags or simple sensor nodes [1]. These Sensor nodes can be used in logistics applications, for example in temperature monitoring of products during transportation. Delivery trucks or warehouses can be supplied with RFID readers that generate the electromagnetic field to communicate with the sensor nodes of different objects. The sensor transponders do not require a battery, but generate the supply voltage from the antenna voltage. Therefore, the individual nodes can be very light and cheap. The Villard circuit (sometimes referred to as Dickson charge-pump or Greinacher circuit) is typically used to multiply and rectify the RF voltage from the antenna [2]. The power sensitivity P_{min} of this circuit is a critical figure of merit in order to reach a large operating distance of the passively powered device. P_{min} is defined as the minimum input power that generates the required output DC supply voltage for a given load current.

Figure 1 shows the chip architecture of the developed passive sensor transponder. Beside the rectifier circuit, the ASIC contains a modem, a clock oscillator, power-on-reset detection, and voltage limitation. The chip also includes a bandgap



Figure 1: Architecture of a transponder with additional circuitry for temperature measurement.

voltage reference and LDO voltage regulator to generate temperature-independent supply and reference voltages. A digital part manages the communications protocol as well as access to non-volatile memory. The minimum unregulated supply voltage is specified as 1.6V to guarantee reliable operation at all process corners and temperature variation (-40 °C to +85 °C). The average current consumption is 5 μ A.

The rectifier sensitivity is reduced by the forward voltage drop of the diodes [3]. Schottky diodes are often used for their high switching speed and low voltage drop (typically 200 mV to 400 mV). However, the substrate losses and series resistance of these devices is not negligible without additional masks to produce well suited Schottky diodes. Diode connected transistors are available in every standard CMOS technology, but their threshold voltage reduces the sensitivity. Low-V_t transistors are often available, but V_t is not a precisely controlled parameter. It is influenced by process and temperature variations, and a negative V_t is not acceptable for rectification.

An analysis [1] of the voltage conversion yields $V_{out} = 2 n$ ($v_{in} - V_{drop}$), where V_{out} is the output DC voltage, n is the number of stages, v_{in} is the input voltage amplitude, and V_{drop} is the forward voltage drop of each rectifying device. The value of V_{drop} depends on the output load current as well as on the specific I(V)-characteristic of the rectifying device. In addition to this voltage transfer characteristic, the input impedance of the rectifier determines the power sensitivity. A quantitative study of the input impedance was presented in [2]. The input resistance and the input capacitance depend mainly on the output current consumption as well as parasitic losses in bulk-CMOS technology. In typical process technologies without additional masks or well controlled low V_{tr} , the voltage drop across the rectifying devices remains a limiting factor for the operating range of passive devices [3].

Several techniques have been developed to eliminate the effect of V_t by means of gate biasing techniques [4], [5]. Figure 2 shows a single rectifier stage where the gate of the

CMOS CIRCUITS

AN 868 MHz PASSIVE TEMPERATURE SENSING TRANSPONDER USING A SELF-BIASING UHF RECTIFIER WITH -10.5 dBm SENSITIVITY IN LOW-COST 0.35 μm CMOS



PMOS transistor is "pre-charged" with a voltage bias at one V_t below the output voltage of the stage. Correspondingly, the gate of the NMOS transistor is biased at one V_t above the DC input. This way, the transistors act as diodes with 0 Volts V_t . NMOS transistors are used in vertical branches and PMOS transistors are used in the horizontal branches, so that all gate bias voltages for eliminating the threshold voltage drop are DC signals. It has been proposed to use a microbattery [4], ferroelectric capacitors [5], or a secondary rectifier [3] to provide the required biasing voltage.

Figure 3 shows the developed self-biased rectifier topology. The first stage, the three intermediate stages, and the two topmost stages have slightly different topologies. The output of the fourth stage provides the supply voltage of the chip, stages 5 and 6 remain unloaded to generate a higher voltage for biasing purposes. In addition to the rectifying transistors, a total of 7 no-mask-added Schottky diodes are still required, as will be explained in the following.



Figure 3: Developed rectifier circuit topology

At low input voltage amplitude, the voltage at the output of the first stage is less than one V_t , so the bias voltage at the gate of a horizontal PMOS transistor would have to be negative to effectively cancel the threshold voltage drop. A simple remedy to avoid negative voltages on the chip is to replace this PMOS transistor in the first stage with a medium sized Schottky diode (contact area = $10 \mu m^2$). All NMOS transistors require a bias voltage that is higher than the output DC voltage of the preceding rectifier stage. However, during the initial start-up phase, the DC voltages have not been generated and the biasing scheme is not in effect. Therefore, to ensure reliable start-up of the circuit, small sized Schottky diodes (contact area = $3 \mu m^2$) are placed in parallel to the vertical NMOS transistors to serve as rectifying devices when the threshold voltage drop of the transistors is not yet eliminated. The NMOS transistors in stages 3 and 4 require a bias voltage that is higher than the output voltage of the rectifier (DC_4). Therefore, two additional stages (5 and 6) are implemented to generate higher, unloaded voltages (DC_5 and DC_6) to



Figure 4: Measured data signals during wireless communication at 40 kHz. (Digital part for ISO/EPC protocol handling implemented on FPGA with separate power source)



Figure 5: Comparison of the measured output voltage for the conventional Villard circuit, the circuit presented in [3] (measured), and the proposed circuit



Figure 6: Measured output voltage for different load currents

supply the biasing circuits for the NMOS transistors in stages 3 and 4. Stages 5 and 6 are implemented without transistors in the vertical branch, because the required biasing voltage for NMOS devices would be higher than the top voltage DC_6.

The biasing circuits are connected to different DC terminals in the rectifier stack in order to minimize the voltage drop across the resistors. This way, the resistor size can be reduced without significantly increasing the load current. For example, the biasing circuit to generate the gate voltage of the NMOS transistor in the third stage is connected between terminals DC_5 and DC_2. The bias voltage is set to be higher than DC_2 by one V_t, so it is almost as high as the potential at node DC_5. Therefore, the voltage across the resistor is close to zero, and the current through the biasing branch is almost negligible when all capacitors are fully charged during "steady state" operation.

The measured IC (figure 7) contains the complete analog part of the sensor transponder with the presented rectifier circuit. The chip area is 1.7 mm x 1.3 mm including the pads. A large part of this area is used for capacitors to achieve sufficient PSRR of the regulator and the references during temperature measurement. Figure 4 shows the measured data signals during wireless communication. Figure 5 shows the rectifier output voltage as a function of the input power for the proposed circuit, as well as for the rectifier presented in [3] and the conventional Schottky diode approach. All three circuits were fabricated and measured in the same CMOS process. The proposed circuit presents a sensitivity improvement of 4 dBm compared to the conventional circuit and generates a significantly higher output voltage than the circuit in [3]. The measured current consumption is 3 µA (without the digital part) at 1.6 V, in agreement with simulation. Figure 6 shows the measured DC output voltage as a function of the load current. The achieved power sensitivity of the presented IC is still lower than some reported values for non sensor RFID tags [1]. This is due to the fact, that the sensor node requires significantly more power

CMOS CIRCUITS

AN 868 MHz PASSIVE TEMPERATURE SENSING TRANSPONDER USING A SELF-BIASING UHF RECTIFIER WITH -10.5 dBm SENSITIVITY IN LOW-COST 0.35 µm CMOS



Figure 7: Photograph of the presented test chip with the complete analog part of the sensor tag and the developed rectifier

(1.6 V x 5 μ A = 7.5 μ W, including digital) than simple RFID tags (1 V x 1 μ A = 1 μ W, [6]).

References:

- [1] U. Karthaus and M. Fischer, "Fully Integrated Passive UHF RFID Transponder IC With 16.7-µW Minimum RF Input Power", J. Solid State Circuits, vol. 38, pp. 1602-1608, Oct. 2003
- [2] R. E. Barnett, et al., "A RF to DC Voltage Conversion Model for Multi-Stage Rectifers in UHF RFID Transponders", J. Solid State Circuits, vol. 44, pp. 354-370, Feb. 2009
- [3] T. Feldengut et al., "A UHF Voltage Multiplier Circuit Using a Threshold-Voltage Cancellation Technique", Proc. 5th Int. PRIME Conference, pp. 288-291, July 2009
- [4] T. Umeda et al., "A 950MHz Rectifier Circuit for Sensor Networks with 10m-Distance", ISSCC Dig. Tech. Papers, pp. 256-257, Feb. 2005

- [5] H. Nakamoto et al., "A Passive UHF RFID Tag LSI with 36.6% Efficiency CMOS-Only Rectifier and Current-Mode Demodulator in 0.35μm FeRAM Technology", ISSCC Dig. Tech. Papers, pp. 1201-1210, 2006
- [6] J. Curty et al., "A Model for μ-Power Rectifier Analysis and Design", IEEE Trans. Circuits and Systems I, vol. 52, pp. 2771-2779, Dec. 2005

ON CHIP DIGITAL READOUT ELECTRONICS FOR LARGE SCALE IR IMAGE SENSORS

R. Lerch

Combining standard CMOS wafers with additional processing steps allows the creation of Micro-Electro-Mechanical Systems (MEMS), which extend the functionality of the chips from electronic circuitry to direct sensor and actuator functions. A sensor function that can be realized with such additional processing is the detection of infrared radiation (IR) in the 7 to 14 µm range. This function cannot be achieved in CMOS structures alone for these longer wavelengths, which are used in thermal imaging applications.

Using an array of MEMS structures (see the article "Thermally isolated monocrystalline silicon diodes as detectors for microbolometers" in this issue for an example) as IR sensor pixels, an IR imaging sensor can be constructed, very much like the conventional imaging sensors for visible light. The sensor element consists of a temperature-dependent resistor suspended above the chip surface on two supports. These supports provide a high degree of thermal insulation, so that the resistor's temperature is determined by the arriving infrared radiation. The resistor's temperature-dependent resistance therefore provides a means to convert the level of incoming IR into an electrical signal.

Conventional IR image sensors of this type have followed the same general lines as visible light image sensors. Those sensors are wholly built using CMOS technology (or, equivalently, CCD technology), with a pixel consisting of a sensor area (silicon diode), an integrating capacitor and a switch to connect to an output amplifier or a video ADC. While the IR pixel does not need the diode (its sensing element is the MEMS resistor), but integrating capacitor and the switch are still present. The output amplifier or video ADC usually is realized once for the whole array, with a hierarchy of row and column switches sequentially connecting it to each pixel.

This kind of architecture has several drawbacks: The output amplifier or ADC have to operate at high speeds, as the pixel rate at the output approaches 10Mpel/s for arrays with VGA resolution (640*480 pixels), while providing a resolution of 16 bit or better. These devices run at a high power level and constitute a "hot spot" on the chip, which can degrade the performance of nearby pixels. All signals from the individual pixels to the output amplifier or ADC are analog signals, so very careful routing is required so that they are not subject to interference.

Our new readout architecture (Fig. 1) takes advantage of the silicon real estate under the sensing elements to implement the ADC function, using a massive array of simple and slow ADCs instead of one fast and power-hungry one. This not only eliminates the hot spot, it also uses robust digital signaling to move the image data out of the array. As it is unfeasible to have one ADC for each pixel, adjacent pixels are combined into clusters of pixels sharing one ADC. During the frame period the pixels are converted sequentially, and the results are serially shifted out through the cluster columns. One row of cluster data at a time arrives at the edge of the array, where it is multiplexed into a single output stream.



For low circuit area and robustness, the ADCs were implemented as $\sum -\Delta$ ADC converters, consisting of a second-order analog $\sum -\Delta$ Modulator and a digital decimation filter using a three-stage sinc filter with a programmable filter order. With a small ADC footprint the size of the pixel clusters can be kept small. This has two beneficial results: the time

CMOS CIRCUITS

ON CHIP DIGITAL READOUT ELECTRONICS FOR LARGE SCALE IR IMAGE SENSORS

available for each pixel increases, improving noise reduction due to the longer integration time. In addition, given a fixed oversampling ratio of the $\sum \Delta$ ADC converters, the speed of the analog and digital circuit can be reduced. Therefore the filter algorithm was optimized, yielding a structure consisting of three cascaded integrators followed by rate decimation and a 3rd-order differentiator. This structure has an added benefit in that the filter order can be made programmable by changing the timing of the rate decimation stage. Register word length were minimized by considering the maximum possible result sizes and by using modulus arithmetic. As all ADC converters in the array are working in lockstep, all control signals and clocks are generated centrally outside the array, and are distributed to the converters via drivers distributed along the edge of the array. Thus only the datapath elements of the filter need to be located in the array.

An analysis of the area and power consumption of the data path shows that the former can be reduced by using serial arithmetic, at the expense of an increased power consumption and data clock rate. A fully parallel implementation would require more than 4 times the area of a bit-serial one, but its power consumption is slightly below 1/3 of the bit serial solution. We decided to optimize the area-power product of the circuit, which resulted in using 4-bit serial arithmetic. The power consumption now is about 50% above that of the fully parallel case, and the area just 30% above the bit-serial implementation area.

In order to reduce the area even further, the digital filter was implemented using a full-custom digital design (Figs. 2 and 3). This resulted in dramatic area reduction: while a standard cell layout used about 90000 μ m², the full custom version only needs slightly less then 13000 μ m². As registers were implemented with dynamic latches and multiplexers with transmission gates, both using only NMOS pass transistors, the logic high level of all control and clock signals was set one



Fig. 2: Full-Custom Layout of the Sinc Filter Datapath. Vertical control and power tracks in metal 3 and 4 layers are not shown.



Fig. 3: Zoomed View of Sinc Filter Datapath. Note the use of polysilicon as routing layer in addition to metal 1 and 2 layers.

NMOS threshold voltage higher than the supply voltage of the digital filter. The use of dynamic latches and switch logic also has the additional benefit of reducing the power dissipation within the array. This is not only due to the reduced supply voltage, but also due the reduced capacitive loads these elements present, compared with equivalent circuits implemented as fully complementary CMOS logic.

Testing such an array may seem to be a difficult task at first sight, but by exploiting the structure of the filter circuit it was quite simple to integrate powerful test support with very little overhead. As the data registers are organized as segmented serial registers, the implementation of a full scan path actually is straightforward and has very little overhead. Most of the circuitry needed is also used for the serial reset scheme that initializes the filter before the start of a new conversion, so that only 12 NMOS transistors are needed to implement 4 parallel scan chains in each filter. The scan chains of the clusters in column are connected in series, so that scan data enters the array on the top and leaves on the bottom. The 4 parallel scan chains in each column can be selected for test, or operated in parallel with the same set of input data. In the latter case, comparators in the row multiplexer block can compare the output of 4 reference scan chains with the scan chain outputs of the other columns. The combined output of the comparators is available, together wit the reference scan chain data, at the device pins. This scan test/BIST combination reduces scan test time by almost two orders of magnitude. In addition, a true BIST mode was implemented for a functional/ at-speed test of the filters. In this mode, a programmable digital Σ - Δ modulator in the state-machine block supplies all filters with a Σ - Δ data stream, replacing the data from the analog modulators. As all filters run in lockstep, all results must be the same. Like "real" results they are shifted out to the row multiplexer, from which they are transported to the device pins for testing. Alternately, they can be compared like scan test results, providing a means of in-system test.

Implementing the digital filter of the $\sum -\Delta$ ADC as a highly optimized full-custom layout allowed us to integrate several thousand ADCs on a single chip. It reduced power requirements by almost an order of magnitude, making self-heating of the chip negligible. Leveraging the power of full-custom design comes at a cost: the design time for the filter function, less than a week for an HDL-based standard cell design, was close to 10 weeks for the full custom design. A very careful assessment must be made before committing to a full-custom design, as it has severe impact on design time and cost. In our case, it was simply indispensable to meet the project goals.

The presented work is part of project "FIRKAM" funded by the German "Bundesministerium für Bildung und Forschung BMBF".

»SMARTFOREST – APPLICATION OF TRANSPONDER TECHNOLOGY AND WIRE-LESS SENSOR NETWORKS IN FORESTRY«

H.-C. Müller

The subject of the cooperative project »SmartForest« funded by the Bundesanstalt für Landwirtschaft und Ernährung (BLE) is the application of transponder technologies and wireless sensor networks with the objective of contributing to the efficiency of silvicultural processes. The project focuses on two aspects: the concept development and application of long-lasting tree labelling tool and the development and implementation of wireless sensor networks for long-term forest monitoring at high spatial and temporal resolution. The cooperation partners are the Leinemann und Hosius GbR (ISOGEN), the MUL Services GmbH and the Nordwestdeutsche Forstliche Versuchsanstalt (NW-FVA).

Tree labelling with RFID

A wide variety of labelling options is available for immediate identification like colour marking and labels made of metal, plastic or paper. Over time, however, many of them may have been removed, damaged or destroyed due to weather, growth or vandalism. To solve this problem, the ideal solution would be to hide the identification marker in a place where time and environment will have minimal effect on system robustness. The solution pursued in the project is to embed RFID tags at the trees and retrieve the identification numbers via a tree-penetrating RF signal. A battery is not present within the RFID tag; instead, energy is received wirelessly from an antenna connected to a handheld reader. Remote and on-demand power transfer allows the tags to remain hidden behind the tree's bark indefinitely, a considerable advantage toward maintaining longevity and reliability for this type of identification marker.

Tree labelling at this level carries with it some unique application requirements including the need for a relatively long range (more than 50 cm) and small tag sizes coupled with durability to large variations in wood, moisture, and biochemical content in the path between the RFID tag and the reading device. Furthermore, economical aspects are of some importance not only in terms of RFID tags but also in terms of the processes involved.

With respect to the aforementioned requirements project work has focused on the choice of components (i.e. RFID tags, reader, etc.) and the development of dedicated software components (i.e. reader application, system architecture). This work has been carried out by the project partner MUL Services GmbH. As a matter of course extensive field tests have been performed by the NW-FVA and ISOGEN in order to validate the concepts developed and to investigate the interaction of entities of interest. For that purpose around six hundred RFID tags have been attached to seven forest species in various forestry districts.

The results of the field tests showed among others that the amount of time for the installation of RFID tags corresponds to the amount of time needed for traditional methods like colour marking. Furthermore, it turned out that the robustness of the selected devices do meet the requirements and constraints. As a matter of fact, it is impossible to draw final conclusions regarding the long-term readability and durability (in terms of tens of years). However, process improvements are achieved at this stage of development by implementing a seamless flow of information.

Wireless sensor networks for long-term monitoring

Wireless sensor networks provide the ability to measure and record information about the natural environment at high spatial and temporal resolution such as, for instance, long-term monitoring of dynamic phenomena like soil water content, air temperature, air humidity or leaf humidity in small forest areas. Although the supporting communication technologies for low cost, low power wireless networks wireless sensor networks have been greatly improved in the past decade, there are still some research and design aspects remaining, in order to ensure a long-term unattended operation of a sensor network. Furthermore, in forest areas energy harvesters are suitable in a restricted manner only. Hence, the main objective of this particular project has been to improve the operation time of battery powered sensor nodes.





Various components affect energy consumption of sensor nodes (e.g. electronic components, protocol stack and application software). Whereas off-the-shelf electronic components have been used, development efforts have been focused on adjusting software components in terms of minimizing in network communication. In a sensor network, sensor nodes communicate with each other through short-range radios at least with those nodes being in the radio range. In monitoring applications, all sensor nodes are sources, sense environment and transmit sensed data to the sink periodically. In addition to sensed data, each node must transmit other node's data to the sink.

In network communication is mainly affected by the protocol stack providing connectivity within the network. A dedicated protocol stack, enhanced in this project and based on IEEE802.15.4, ensures connectivity and coverage with respect to the reliability of transmission while allowing the sensor nodes to operate in an energy efficient manner (i.e. low duty cycle).

Field tests have been carried out at the Göttinger Wald site in co-operation with the NW-FVA to evaluate aspects of lifetime and reliability in a silvicultural environment. Sensor nodes have been deployed in the test area equipped with sensors to measure soil moisture, air temperature, air humidity and leaf humidity. In order to monitor actual network status, beside sensed data additional data have been transmitted representing network topology, number of transmissions or battery health.

The sensor nodes were powered by low-cost alkaline batteries. Their service life is decreased as they are discharged at low temperature, like in the period from December 2009 to March 2010 at the test area. The sensor network has performed flawlessly even under these environmental conditions.

Conclusion

The results from this cooperative project show that the utilisation of electronic components in forestry provides the opportunity to improve processes involved in terms of information retrieval and information management. RFID-based tree labelling enables long-term data access as compared to traditional methods which is of some relevance in terms of forest genetic resources. An adapted wireless sensor network technology allows long-term monitoring of phenomena like soil moisture, along with high spatial and temporal resolution while operating unattended.

A DATA TRANSMISSION TECHNIQUE FOR PASSIVE SENSOR-TRANSPONDERS IN MEDICINE

A. Hennig, G. vom Bögel, A. Grabmaier

Abstract

The use of sensor-transponder technologies particularly in medical applications opens valuable possibilities in therapy of human cardiovascular system diseases, e.g. cardiac insufficiency. The application presented here is representative for future applications, where the use of miniaturized passively-powered sensortransponder systems with high read range is relevant. In the past, loadmodulation was developed as a simple technique to transmit data from low-cost ID-transponders to a reader. This technique can be considered as suboptimal for the given challenges in the presented medical and other possible high-demanding applications. Higher read ranges and small antenna dimensions are necessary. In consequence new techniques, especially for data transmission, have to be developed. First of all, the limitations of the loadmodulation technique are analyzed. Conventional solutions are then discussed. It is shown that existing solutions could not be used for this specific and future applications. A new data transmission technique called "frequency conversion" is presented. This technique allows data transmission over a greater distance. Measurements in a practical implementation verifiy the performance of this technique.

I. INTRODUCTION

Medical studies have shown that the treatment of cardiovascular diseases could be significantly improved by a continuous monitoring of physical parameters, deep inside the human body, including blood pressure and temperature. Due to the impossibility of a local battery as power supply, the use of so-called passive transponder systems is of special interest. In the past several RFID-transponders with attached sensors have been developed [1][2][3]. These transponders work with state of the art transmission techniques, such as load-modulation.



Fig. 1. Sensor transponder system for medical applications

It will be shown that the presented and future applications are not feasible with these transponder systems. Figure 1 shows a sensor-transponder system for medical applications. The reader is located outside of the body. It emits a magnetic field to provide power to the transponder. In state of the art transponder systems, load-modulation is used to transmit data from the transponder to the reader. Thereby a switchable resistor R is connected as a load to the resonant circuit L_{T} and C_{T} . In consequence, the idle current and further the magnetic field strength at the transponder can be changed. This change can be detected at the reader antenna by a receiver. In practice this change is relatively low compared to the field of the reader and noise.

In the presented application the transponder's dimensions should allow catheter-implantation. Consequently, antennas with the shape of a stick and only a few millimeters in size are required. Transponders with additional sensors consume significantly more energy than simple ID-transponders. The maximum possible distance between the reader and the implanted transponder has to be considered, e.g. to make such a system suitable for corpulent patients. Data transmission has to be possible over the required distance and with the necessary data rate. To make a medical diagnosis reliable, the transmission has to contain information about the pressure progression of heart beats. In transponder systems the so called energy range and data range can be distinguished. The energy range characterizes the maximum distance, where the transponder can be provided with enough energy to work. Whereas the read range characterizes the maximum distance, where the reader could receive the transponders data signal. Usually simple ID-transponder systems feature the disadvantage of a much smaller read range than the energy range. Nevertheless for this and similar future applications, the energy supply and data transmission have to be possible over distances of 40 cm at least. Nowadays there are no systems that meet these requirements.

Preliminary studies [4] have shown, that a sensor-transponder and its corresponding antenna with the required size, can be provided with enough energy at a maximum distance of 40 cm. Thereby optimized antennas were used. In consideration of the human body and antenna loss effects, a frequency was found where the best results could be achieved. The data transmission has to be realized under these conditions. In the next sections the limitations of conventional techniques will be discussed. It will be shown that with the given conditions, data transmission is not possible with existing techniques. This paper discloses a new transmission technique, that makes a data transmission possible at the required distance.

II. PROBLEM INVESTIGATION

The read range is limited by several factors: the magnetic coupling between the antennas is very low. This causes a small signal strength at the reader antenna. Hence, the sensitivity of the receiver limits the read range. Furthermore the voltage amplitude caused by the generator at the reader antenna is relatively high compared to the transponder signal. This makes signal processing difficult. Noise of the power amplifier is also much higher than the transponder signal. If the SNR (Signal to noise ratio) drops below a minimum, a decoding of the transponder signal is not possible. Moreover man-made noise and antenna movements disturb the data transmission as well. Detailed considerations will be given in the next sections.

A. Transfer function

The transfer function is needed to analyze the transmission channel. From it the expectable signal strength and channel characteristics can be obtained. In order to derive the transfer function the equivalent circuit shown in figure 2 is used. The variation of the voltage over the resonant circuit caused by the modulation resistor R can be modelled by a voltage source V_T . The transmission channel itself is represented by a transformer equivalent circuit. Losses are represented by R_R and R_T . The generator is represented by its inner resistance RG. The transfer function $\frac{V_C}{V_T}$ can be obtained by solving the Kirchhoff's mesh-law. The result is a first order band-pass function. The transfer function can be derived using the parameters determined in [4]. The parameters are $L_R = 409 \, nH$, $R_R = 9.8 \, m\Omega$, $C = 1:1 \, nF$, $R_T = 2.4 \, \Omega$. The result is shown in figure 3.







Fig. 3. Evaluation of the transfer function

VIRELESS CHIPS AND SYSTEMS A DATA TRANSMISSION TECHNIQUE FOR PASSIVE SENSOR-TRANSPONDERS IN MEDICINE



By switching the load resistor R, an amplitude shift keying modulation is produced. In the frequency domain, upperand lower-sidebands appear. The generator signal, transmitted from the reader to the transponder, acts as a carrier for data transmission in the opposite direction. A 13 kBit/s manchester coded signal has baseband frequency components at 26 kHz. At the corresponding sideband frequencies, the transfer ratio is about $196 \cdot 10^{-6}$. In case of a modulation voltage of 1 V at the transponder side about $200 \,\mu V$ is reached at the reader antenna. In comparison to the sensitivity of common receivers that is about $1 \,\mu V$, this value is high enough. Therefore, the sensitivity is no limitation here.

B. Noise Sources

Several noise sources exist in a transponder system. The transponder signal is disturbed by noise-voltages and -currents. The noise sources are in the frequency generator, the power amplifier, the antenna and in the receiver. The power amplifier adds additional noise. This noise consists of shot noise caused by pn-junctions and Johnson-noise caused by resistors. Thereby the mean square voltage at the receiver is of interest. The mean square voltage produced by a conventional power amplifier (noise figure 16 dB) was measured as 2.3 mV. The gain of the parallel resonant antenna circuit causes an amplification of the noise near to the resonant frequency. The spectral noise density V_{SO} is composed of voltage and current noise densities. Thereby the noise voltage of the source is multiplied with the system gain. With the help of a spice simulation, the mean square noise voltage can be estimated. The result is shown in figure 4. A

spectral shaping of the white noise input can be seen. The noise density is maximal near to the generator frequency. The mean square noise voltage can by obtained by integrating the noise density over the receivers frequency area. With a bandwidth of 100 kHz, which is necessary for a 13 kBit/s manchester coded signal, a mean square noise voltage of 115 mV is reached. This value is several orders of magnitude higher than the transponder signal voltage, which is about 200 μ V. The noise of the antenna is only caused by the real part of the impedance and could be estimated by the following formula [7]:

$$E_{Ant} = \sqrt{4kTR\Delta f} \simeq 2\frac{nV}{\sqrt{Hz}}$$

with k = Bolzmann constant, T = absolute temperature and R_{Ant} = real part of antenna impedance. With a receiver bandwidth of 100 kHz an effective noise voltage of 630 nV is reached. It could be said, that the power amplifier is the dominating noise source in the system and determines the SNR.

C. Distortion

Beside the unwanted noise, there are other disturbances that complicate the decoding of the transponder signal. A detuning of the reader antenna causes a displacement of the transfer function in the frequency domain. This detuning could be caused by changing the distance between the antennas. As can be seen in figure 3 the transfer function is shifted to higher frequencies in presence of a higher mutual inductance. Since the demodulation is done synchronous to the generator signal, the shift appears also in the baseband. In consequence the baseband transfer function is no longer a first order low pass. The transponder signal is distorted. This effect is noticeable by a overlaid oscillation of the transponder signal. The beat frequency correlates to the detuning.

If the transponder is implanted near to the heart, it will move in rhythm with the heart beat. The mutual inductance between the coils depends on the orientation of the coils to each other. Because of that, the voltage damping over the reader antenna will vary as well. This variation is appreciable in the basebandsignal as a beat.

D. Signal to Noise Ratio

The SNR is a measure that describes the quality of the signal. If conventional load-modulation is used, and considering a 40 cm distance, the SNR can be calculated as follows:

$$S N R = 10 \log \frac{V_{eff}}{V_{noise}} = 10 \log \frac{(141 \ \mu V)^2}{(115 \ m V)^2} = -58.2 \ dB$$

Thereby a manchester coded signal with 13 kBit/s is assumed. Usually a SNR of about +10 dB is needed to get an acceptable BER (bit error rate). Data transmission with conventional loadmodulation is not possible here.

E. Limitations to Load-Modulation

Conventional load-modulation has several disadvantages that lead to a reduction of the read range. As described in the previous chapter, the SNR is too low for a data transmission at the required distance. The sideband signal produced by loadmodulation has a spectral distance to the carrier signal equal to the data rate. As can be seen in figure 4 the spectral noise power increases in the proximity of the carrier signal. The small spectral distance of some kilohertz also makes filtering impossible. Amplitude variation of the carrier signal, caused by detuning or antenna movements, superposes the data signal irreversibly and increases decoding complexity. Moreover load-modulation wastes energy in the transponder. During the modulation phase the modulation resistor R is connected to the resonant circuit. The energy that is stored inside the resonant circuit is transformed to heat and can not be used anymore. Better results could be achieved, if the spectral distance between the readers signal and the data signal could be enlarged.

III. NOVEL APPROACH

In the preceding section it was shown, that no existing data transmission technique complies with the requirements. Hence, a new transmission technique has to be found. An essential improvement could be done, if a transmission signal with an own freely selectable carrier frequency could be generated, and not affected by the envelope function of the transponder resonant circuit. Hence a frequency could be chosen were the spectral noise density of the power amplifier is low. Moreover, with a higher spectral distance to the carrier, filtering could easily be used to suppress the unwanted carrier. Furthermore it would be an advantage, if no additional energy were necessary to generate the transmission signal.

A. Frequency Conversion

The solution is a technique, from now on refered as frequency conversion. During the modulation phase at load-modulation technique, energy stored in the resonant circuit of the transponder is converted into heat by the modulation resistor. The proposed frequency conversion technique in contrast, uses this energy to generate a transmission signal at a separate frequency instead. Figure 5 illustrates this technique. A sensortransponder system designed according to this technique is shown. With the help of a separated antenna a field is generated (e.g. 13.56 MHz). This field is used to transmit energy to the transponder. This energy is stored in the resonant circuit of the transponder until the voltage amplitude over the resonant circuit has reached its maximum, thereafter no active power is needed anymore. Only a small part of the whole power is used to supply the transponder circuits. A special circuit enables the antenna to oszillate at another frequency. Consequently, a field with a separate frequency is generated. A field frequency of 10.7 MHz, where good filters are available, or an ISM-Band



WIRELESS CHIPS AND SYSTEMS

A DATA TRANSMISSION TECHNIQUE FOR PASSIVE SENSOR-TRANSPONDERS IN MEDICINE



Fig. 6. Spectrum of antenna voltage using load-modulation



Fig. 7. Spectrum using frequency conversion



frequency could be chosen. The amount of energy transfered to the second frequency can be adapted to the requirements of data rate and energy consumption. The generated data signal could be received by a separated antenna, tuned to the corresponding frequency at the reader, by a gradient antenna [10], or by a novel antenna design developed for that purpose.

B. Comparison to Load-Modulation

By comparing with the load-modulation technique, the advantages of the new approach will become clear. For that purpose load-modulation and frequency conversion were tested under the same conditions.

Figure 6 shows the voltage over the transponder resonant circuit using load-modulation in frequency domain. The loadmodulation implicates upper- and lower-sidebands in the spectrum. These sidebands are symmetrical around the carrier frequency generated by the reader, as shown in figure 6. At the reader side, the sidebands are under the noise floor. The generated signal in frequency domain using frequncy conversion is plotted in figure 7. A signal with an own carrier frequency of 10.7 MHz is generated.

C. Energy Balance

For energetic aspects two factors need to be considered: the generation efficiency of transmission signal as well as negative impact in the energy supply of the transponder chip. In frequency conversion the received energy is directly used in the antenna resonant circuit to generate a transmission signal. Hence, no energy is lost in rectifiers, amplifiers or any energy storage as happens in conventional techniques (cp. 8 (b)). Therefore this technique is very efficient as illustrated in figure 8.

D. Reachable Performance

Now the reachable performance is of interest in order to make a comparison to other possible solutions. With the help of the energy stored in the resonant circuit and the channel transfer function, the voltage at the receiver can be calculated. Between the transponder antenna and a receiver antenna there is a transfer ratio of about $3 \cdot 10^{-3}$, assuming an antenna tuned to 10.7 MHz. The mean square value at the receiver is 2063 μ V. The mean square noise voltage can be calculated by integrating the spectral noise density from the spice simulation in figure 4. With a receiver input bandwidth of 300 kHz, which is necessary for such a signal, a mean square noise voltage of 1500 μ V is reached.

The SNR can be calculated:

$$S N R = 10 \log \frac{(2063 \ \mu V)^2}{(1500 \ \mu V)^2} = +2,77 \ dB$$

A value of 2.77 dB corresponds to an improvement of 60.97 dB compared to load-modulation technique (–58.2 dB). Together with a matched-filter a ratio of about **+17.77 dB** is possible. This value is over the minimum of **+10** dB and leads consequently to an acceptable BER.

IV. EXPERIMENTAL EXAMINATION

An experimental measurement shall show, that frequency conversion techniques enables data transmission from a deeply implanted sensor-transponder. To create a substitute that simulates the electric properties of the human body, a phantom substance was prepared. A test transponder was realized with an analogue frontend working with frequency conversion. In the reader a software defined radio shown in figure 9 was used to receive the transponder signal. The receiver consists of an analogue band-pass filter, an ADC, a mixer and a matchedfilter. The main goal of the experiment is to measure the achievable SNR after the mixer over the distance. In the next section the achievable SNR will be measured.





Fig. 10. Measurement result of achievable signal strength and SNR

A. Reading Range

To evaluate the new technique, the achievable signal strength at the receiver and corresponding SNRs were measured. The distance between the reader and the transponder was variated between 8 cm and 46 cm. Figure 10 shows the measurement results: as mentioned before, a minimum SNR of +10 dB is necessary to get an acceptable BER. Considering a matchedfilter with 15 dB signal to noise improvement, a SNR of -5 dB at the input of the receiver is required. The measured SNR is higher in up to 45 cm distance. The energy range is about 40 cm. Therefore, the maximum possible read range is reached.

V. CONCLUSION

Data transmission for deeply implanted sensor-transponders has been analyzed. It was shown, that data transmission over the required distance is not possible with conventional solutions. A new data transmission technique called "frequency conversion" that makes a maximum read range possible, was presented. A practical implementation and measurements have verified the feasibility of this technique.

WIRELESS CHIPS AND SYSTEMS

A DATA TRANSMISSION TECHNIQUE FOR PASSIVE SENSOR-TRANSPONDERS IN MEDICINE

REFERENCES

- M. A. Fonseca, M.G. Allen, J. Kroh, J. White; Flexible Wireless Passive Pressure Sensors For Biomedical Applications; Proc. Solid-State Sensors, Actuators and Microsystems Workshop, 2006
- [2] C. Krüger, J.G. Pfeffer, W. Mokwa, G. vom Bögel,
 R. Günther, T. Schmitz-Rode, U. Schnakenberg;
 Intravascular pressure monitoring system; Sensors and
 Actuators, Volume 110, Issues 1–3, 2004, Pages 61–67
- [3] M.Lu Hong, C. Goldsmith, L. Cauller, J.-B. Lee;
 MEMS-Based Inductively Coupled RFID Transponder for Implantable Wireless Sensor Applications;
 IEEE Magnetics 2007, Volume 43, Issue 6, Pages 2412–2414
- [4] A. Hennig; RF Energy Transmission for Sensor Transponders Deeply Implanted in Human Bodies;
 38th IEEE EuMW 2008, Pages 424-427
- [5] A. Hennig, G. vom Bögel; Antenna Analysis and Optimisation for Deeply Implantable Medical Sensor Transponders; Proc. 54. IEEE IWK 2009
- [6] K. Finkenzeller; RFID Handbook; John Wiley & Sons; New York; 2003
- [7] C.D. Motchenbacher, J.A. Connelly; Low-Noise Electronic System Design; John Wiley & Sons, New York
- [8] L.H. Jung, P.Bytnes-Preston, R. Hessler, T. Lehmann,
 G.J. Suaning, N.H. Lovell;
 A Dual Band Wireless Power and FSK Data Telemetry for
 Biomedical Implants; 28th IEEE EMBS Lyon 2007,
 Pages 4392–4395

- [9] K. D. Kammeyer; Nachrichtenübertragung;B.G. Teubner Stuttgard
- [10] H. Zangl, T. Bretterklieber; Limitations of Range of Operation and Data Rate for 13.56 MHz Load-Modulation Systems; EURASIP Workshop RFID 2007
- [11] C. Klapf, A- Missoni, W. Pribyl, G. Hofer, G. Holweg, W. Kargl; Improvements in Operational Distance in passive HF RFID Transponder Systems; IEEE International Conference on RFID, Las Vegas 2008, Pages 250–257
- [12] J. H. Schurmann; Transponder Arrangement; Texas Instruments Patent 5053774
- [13] A. G. Huber; Group-Addressable Transponder Arrangement; Texas Instruments Patent 5410315

CRASH SENSOR SYSTEMS FOR HIGH-BAY-RACKS

F. Meyer, J. Breer, K. Grundmann

1 Introduction

Nowadays our markets are full of goods from every corner of the world. Not only has the shipment of these goods increased over the last years, but storing them has also become a more and more challenging necessity. Furthermore, every larger company needs warehouses to store raw materials and components during the manufacturing process of their final products.

The main part of a warehouse consists of many high-bay racks. Between these racks, forklifts move through narrow aisles at high speeds, storing and retrieving the goods. Every shelf is supported by pillars. If any of these upright posts get damaged, e.g. by a crash with a forklift, the whole shelf is destabilized and may collapse. This is not only a safety risk for the workers, but may also lead to financial losses as a company relies on the immediate availability of its stored goods.

During the last years, a standard has been developed to minimize the risk of such collapsing high-bay racking. However, the damage control still has to be performed manually. Usually, an inspection of all shelves has to be done once a week. In a worst case scenario, a critical crash can occur directly after the inspection without being reported for an entire week. Therefore, a fully automated system which detects crashes with rack pillars can improve safety, avoid accidents and remove the human factor from the pillar check.

2 Hardware demands

A monitoring system for high bay racking requires the use of electronic devices at every column of the shelves. A normal warehouse has racks with up to several thousand pillars, which have to be monitored individually with respect to external shocks. Every pillar is protected by a special elastic bumper that mitigates damage caused by crashes with forklifts or other vehicles. Within the bumper, a wireless electronic device monitors the pressure and sends a radio signal when a pressure change occurs. Depending on the pressure difference, an incident is categorized from a light impact with no harm for the shelves to a harsh impact requiring immediate action by the warehouse staff. To guarantee a high operating time between battery changes, such a device needs to be highly energy efficient.



Figure 1: Handheld Unit for configuring the radio nodes

When a pressure difference is detected, the device emits a radio signal that is received by a repeater unit. The repeater manages up to 100 sensor nodes and makes sure radio messages are passed to a main control unit. If the repeater is located too far away from the control unit, messages are routed through repeaters located closer to the main unit.

WIRELESS CHIPS AND SYSTEMS CRASH SENSOR SYSTEMS FOR HIGH-BAY-RACKS





The main unit receives every crash incident within the warehouse and visualizes the collected data on its display. All data is transmitted using the UHF ISM frequency band. This band is free to use without licensing costs and limited only in the maximum channel power and channel bandwidth.

The main unit is also used for short-range configuration of the radio nodes when bringing the system to service. Therefore, a low frequency wake-up impulse is sent to activate any node within a range of approximately 50 cm.

3 Software demands

The system can be described as a large network of radio nodes sharing a frequency band with limited range and bandwidth. Additionally, this network needs to be highly energy efficient so that long operating times between battery changes can be realized. Therefore, a customized protocol is designed to fulfil these requirements and make sure no critical impact is missed and the warehouse manager is informed within seconds after a crash event.

To realize the goal of energy efficiency, the system uses static routing. This means the routes from the radio nodes at the rack posts to the handheld unit located in the warehouse manager's office are planned before bringing the system to service. Planning the network means assigning up to 100 sensor nodes to a repeater. The repeater itself is either assigned to a repeater located closer to the main control unit or to the main control unit directly.



Figure 3: Notification of Crash

Every crash incident is sent from the radio node at the rack post to the assigned repeater via a bidirectional protocol, i.e. the receiving unit acknowledges the received data to the sender. If there is no acknowledgement from the receiver, the data is resent until it has reached its destination.

Once per day, every sensor node sends a lifesign message containing the current battery voltage. These lifesigns are used to detect malfunction and low battery power. If the system detects a need for maintenance, alarm messages are displayed at the main unit.



Figure 4: Simulation of Crash Events in the early development phase

Gefördert durch:



Bundesministerium für Wirtschaft und Technologie

aufgrund eines Beschlusses des Deutschen Bundestages

4 System performance and conclusion

The system itself has to be reliable due to its safety functions. Therefore different states of the sensor nodes need to be detected by the system, e.g. low battery state of a radio node, repeater malfunctions or radio nodes which cannot send a lifesign or crash events to a repeater.

Several measures are implemented to avoid those critical states. The current battery voltage of all radio nodes is monitored in certain time intervals and the warehouse staff is informed in case of a low battery state.

Furthermore, all communication paths among the repeaters are checked in short time intervals and errors are detected swiftly. If an interruption of the predefined routing path occurs (e.g. because of a power failure), the repeaters store the radio messages received from the sensors and re-send them as soon as correct operation is restored. This minimizes the risk of data loss.

The safety of high-bay racks is improved by using sensor nodes within special bumpers. Critical impacts are reported in seconds and the warehouse staff is warned. Not only the safety risks are minimized, but also any person or company responsible for the crash can be tracked due to a fast system response.

This project was founded by "Arbeitsgemeinschaft industrieller Forschungsvereinigungen »Otto von Guericke« e.V.".

MEDINA – TELEMEDICINE REHABILITATION SUPPORT IN ONE'S OWN FOUR WALLS

Modern health care through innovative use of technology and efficient information logistics

B. Heidemann, D. Dünnebacke, F. Schönherr, A. Amini

Abstract

People in Germany live longer than ever. The demographic change is no longer a future vision but rather pervasive in nowadays society. The attempt to extend the lifetime of individuals represents an enormous challenge for the health system. Caught in the dilemma of steadily rising costs and the continuing demand for a best possible health care, new ways of providing health services are essential. The MeDiNa project addresses this problem and develops both technical and organizational solutions for home-care of cardiac patients. The aim is to allow a periodically monitoring of health status of people in their own home and thus to detect recidivisms at an early stage and to initiate appropriate countermeasures. As a result, there are benefits for both the patient and the health system.

Introduction

The desire of having a long and fulfilling life is everyone's wish. Everyone will already have felt at least once the demand to get well and to regain the usual productivity as soon as possible. As with many other health problems, also in the case of cardiac diseases, this demand is met by the offer of a multi-week stay in a rehabilitation clinic. However, the duration of this stays decreases for years. For example, the average stay for all types of rehabilitation in NRW was 32.4 days in 1990 and 27.7 days in 2007 [1]. The length of stay for cardiac rehabilitation was actually of only 21.9 days [1]. Despite the improved treatment methods and modern clinical devices, a complete recovery of patients in this short time is not always possible. Rather, patients are released earlier to the ambulant sector. As a consequence, the usually elderly patients continue rehabilitation in their own home without being periodically monitored in short intervals by medical and nursing staff. This issue is addressed by the research project MeDiNa, promoted by the German Federal Ministry of Education and Research. (Mikrosystemtechnik für ganzheitliche telemedizinische Dienstleistungen in der häuslichen Nachsorge; grant number: 01FC08056).

Cardiovascular diseases cause of death no. 1 in Germany

Cardiovascular diseases are the leading causes of death in Germany and Europe. In 2007 a total number of 419 723 people died in Germany due to diseases of the circulatory system and heart attack [2]. In Europe, the statistic counts nearly 4.5 million deaths annually [3]. The estimation of medical authorities, that the number of new cases in the near future will continue to increase, is particularly disillusioning [3]. Therefore, the focus is on providing the best treatment of the occurring diseases. This depends on several factors: early diagnosis, rapid and efficient treatment and comprehensive rehabilitation. For the latter to continue effectively after the in-patient rehabilitation, with strong partners from industry and regional health service providers, the consortium of Fraunhofer Institut für Mikroelektronische Schaltungen und Systeme, Universitätsklinikum Aachen, MUL Services GmbH, Forschungsinstitut für Rationalisierung (FIR) e.V. an der RWTH Aachen, Institut für Arbeitswissenschaft (IAW) an der RWTH Aachen and Philips GmbH (Unternehmensbereich Healthcare) develops a holistic approach to microsystem technology supported home-care of rehabilitation patients (see Figure 1).

Lack of periodically monitoring after rehabilitation is a problem

After discharge from the rehabilitation clinic, regular visits and intensive contacts with medical staff are a thing of the past. This lack of periodically monitoring of patients, shortly after a cardiac disease, constitutes a big problem for the patients and the health system. Deterioration of the state of health will be recognized too late or not at all which may lead to complications and serious health damage. For example 80 % of the annually 300,000 new cases of heart attacks occur at home. Of these 80 %, 50 % remain unnoticed [4]. In addition



Figure 1: A holistic approach to micro-system technology supported aftercare

to the partly dramatic consequences for the patient, this fact has an enormous impact for the health system. Relapses in the in-patient treatment or complications come with the result of much more expensive medical treatments. In this way, heart diseases including frequent re-hospitalization, are the cause for expenses of nearly 170 billion \in in the EU [3]. Many of these cases and consequently their expenses can be avoided by early diagnostics and be treated with lower impact for both, the patient and the health system. **Telemedicine solutions show new ways in health care** Recent telemedicine approaches offer, in association with modern sensors, possibilities to capture the necessary information of high risk patients in a quick and inexpensive manner, process it comprehensively and make it available centrally. Thereby the decoupling of the medical examination from the availability of medical personnel offers enormous potentials for health care. Thus, for example, the so-called tele-monitoring through a computerized monitoring system, checks the vital

WIRELESS CHIPS AND SYSTEMS

MEDINA - TELEMEDICINE REHABILITATION SUPPORT IN ONE'S OWN FOUR WALLS

signs (pulse, blood pressure) which are sent immediately to a provider (medical practice, rehabilitation station) where the qualified personnel can intervene directly in case of irregularities. Most telemedicine applications tend nowadays to a faster, better and wider communication of patient data via electronic ways (tele-consultation). Although the technological basis for telemedicine services appears to be available, it lacks so far on the sustainable concepts of integration of the telemedicine in the first health care market. This shall be achieved with the MeDiNa's developed business model for the provider of such services (Medical Service Provider).

The aim of MeDiNa project is to make use of the telemedicine potential and to allow a simple and continuous monitoring of patient data by the rehabilitation experts (doctors, care attendants and therapists). Based on this data the experts will be enabled to readjust and reorganize therapies and to intervene earlier in cases of emergency. This is the basis for providing modern telemedical services (for example electronic visits) supporting the aftercare of cardiac patients. In order to test this approach in a prototype and to validate the usefulness by means of a patient study there are two technical components necessary which are beeing developed within the project (see Figure 2):



- MeDiNa-HomeBox for the acquisition of vital parameters of rehabilitation patients in their home environment
- MeDiNa-Portal for the conditioned presentation of vital parameters for doctors and for the ensuring of data security through a comprehensive rights and role model.

Innovative use of technology

The MeDiNa-HomeBox comprises of various wireless coupled sensors for the regular supervision and monitoring of vital parameters without a direct involvement of medical staff. For this purpose the patient will be fit with a MeDiNa-HomeBox for the domestic use. Besides the acquisition of basic medical data such as ECG, blood pressure, body temperature, weight and respiratory rate, specific measurements are added depending on disease and clinical history in order to reflect and track the situation of the patient. The goal is the intelligent integration of existing applications to a holistic service system. Due to the primarily elderly patients special emphasis is put on the usability of the system. This aspect is supported for example by using a touch-screen display. In addition the patient must remain extensively uninfluenced due to the use of the MeDiNa-HomeBox. By using microsystem technology, these requirements will be satisfied.

After the acquisition of the vital parameters, these data will be sent to the MeDiNa-Portal via UMTS and GPRS respectively. If no mobile connection could be established, the data exchange can be realized over a standard telephone line. The portal supports the communication between all parties involved (e.g. patient, hospital) and the coordination of the service contribution. For the implementation of the desired system solution, portals offer different suitable functions and technologies. As important basic functions can be mentioned among others: user management, authentification, searching, personalisation, role and right administration and data security. Thus the parameters captured by the different sensors are evaluated in detail after the transmission to the portal and pre-

pared adequately and structured for the targeted group and

made available to authorized persons or institutions. Special aspects thereby are the unification of different user needs, an efficient supply of information and data between the different parties as well as high security and data protection against the background of handling sensitive personal data.

Efficient information logistics

The technical components MeDiNa Homebox and MeDiNa Portal form the basis for providing telemedicine services. In the center stands the so-called Medical Service Provider (short: MSP). The focus off MSP's activities concentrates on ensuring an efficient information logistics, the correct information, at the right time, in the correct form and at the correct place. Concretely, this means that the data for the diagnosis, measured by the sensor system, unaltered by the transmission, prepared adequately for the addressee had to be delivered in real time to the physicians or nurses. The system also must permit a flow of information between the medical personnel and from the medical personnel to the patients. In summary the MSP must be able to arrange suitable systems and information services based on technology potentials and medical requirements. Apart from the primary and already outlined services, as collection of the vital parameters, monitoring and configuration of the state of health or the rehabilitation plan respectively as well as providing the underlying data and information management, value added services can be offered and used by the patients.

Examples are:

- Service for monitoring the medication: It can be recognized in time, if the patient must reorder his medicines or if the storage life of a medicine expires.
- Service for monitoring the fitness activity: Here the daily sportive activity under observation of the vital parameters could be reconstructed.
- Service for monitoring the diet: An intelligent calorie computer could compute the calories connected with the meal and make proposals for further meals.

Based on the integration of different technologies and the development of services for the Medical Service Provider, a holistic approach can be developed to the micro-system supported providing of services.

Result

For about 4 million cardiac risk patients in Germany the MeDiNa system offers an effortless, short interval control of relevant vital parameters in their domestic environment [4]. Even with longer treatment intervals, the continuous monitoring of vital parameters makes an exact controlling of the therapy possible, and contributes to the improvement of the compliance and disease condition of the heart patient. Thereby the patient's quality of life increases and the annual costs for the support can be reduced by reduction of hospitalizations, emergency treatments and physician visits[5]. Thus, for example, the telemedicine study "Herzensgut" of the insurance company "Kaufmännische Krankenkasse Hannover" pointed out that the utilisation of telemedicine equipment results in a cost reduction of around 20% (on the average about approximately 1,400 €)[6]. Fast and purposeful presentation of information about pre-existing conditions, examinations and therapies is a further result of the digital data acquisition and forwarding. Thus the project addresses two central problems. On the one hand, a better health welfare service for patients is made possible, and on the other hand, ways are pointed out, how the health economy can increase the treatment quality in the next years, despite foreseeable financial restrictions. An improvement for both sides.

WIRELESS CHIPS AND SYSTEMS

MEDINA - TELEMEDICINE REHABILITATION SUPPORT IN ONE'S OWN FOUR WALLS

References:

Id=renderPrint.psml.

 [1] Landesbetrieb Information und Technik Nordrhein-Westfalen: Vorsorge- oder Rehabilitationseinrichtungen. http://www.it.nrw.de/statistik/f/daten/eckdaten/r312vorsorge.html Aktualisierungsdatum: Oktober 2008

[2] Statistisches Bundesamt Deutschland; Krankheiten des Herz-/Kreislaufsystems weiterhin häufigste Todesursache; Pressemitteilung Nr. 303 vom 22.08.2008. http://www.destatis.de/jetspeed/portal/cms/Sites/destatis/ Internet/DE/Presse/pm/2008/08/PD08_303_232,template

- [3] Mock, W.: Der digitale Patient. VDI-Nachrichten (2009) 23, S. 3.
- [4] Krüger-Brand, H.E.: Telemonitoring und Electronic Homecare: Therapie im Wohnzimmer. Deutsches Ärzteblatt 103(2006)9, S. 522–526.
- [5] Kielblock, B.: Frye, C.; Kottmair, S.; Hudler, T.; Siegmund-Schultze, E.;Middeke, M.: Einfluss einer telemedizinisch unterstützten Betreuung auf Gesamtbehandlungkosten und Mortalität bei chronischer Herzinsuffizienz. Deutsche medizinische Wochenschrift 132(2007)9, S. 417–422.
- [6] Krüger-Brand, H. E.: Gute Ergebnisse mit Telemedizin. Deutsches Ärzteblatt 102(2005) 31–32, S. 2187.

HOSPITAL ENGINEERING

O. Lazar

Motivation and Brief Description

Hospitals in North Rhine-Westphalia will face considerable challenges in the years to come, particularly the conflicting objectives of improving both the cost situation and the quality of the performed efficiency. The aim is to remain or to become competitive and to be one of the Hospitals of the Future.

Here, the technical areas of hospitals are starting points for optimization, increase in efficiency and cost reduction. These areas include, for instance, hospital IT, energy supply or building services engineering and maintenance, as well as hospital logistics and facility management.





Innovation and optimization in those special areas usually result only in partial cost reduction and quality increase and disregard optimization in the overall technical system of a hospital. Optimization potential of an overall approach is, thus, given away, which may even result in conflicting goals by means of negative effects of measures in one area on other areas. Often, valid technical and performance figures of special areas to evaluate individual measures do not exist. Therefore, cross functional concepts and tools are entirely absent.

Hospital Engineering aims to close this gap. It hopes to benefit from an overall approach to the technical system of a hospital by researching current innovation and particularly its effects

on adjacent areas, the development of best-practice solutions, the optimization of the overall system and the characterization with the help of significant key figures. Practical implementation eventually follows in so called "thematic projects". Thus, *Hospital Engineering* reaches far beyond classical approaches to hospital technology and provides a foundation for a competitive and technically sustainable hospital.

As part of the competition *Med in.NRW, Hospital Engineering* is a government-funded project by the state of North Rhine-Westphalia. A total of 235 contributions and up to 70 million Euro from EU-, state- and commune-funds, as well as from private partners account for *Med in.NRW* to be the grandest competition of the regional government as part of the *NRW-EU-Ziel2-Programms.* The ETN Forschungszentrum Jülich GmbH is in charge of the project.

Participation of Fraunhofer IMS in Hospital Engineering

Fraunhofer IMS designs and constructs a suitable and realistic laboratory for the required room systems at the FraunhoferinHaus-Center. The following rooms of a hospital will be constructed including all furnishing and technical infrastructure: reception and waiting area, nurses' room, patient's room including bathroom, treatment room, room for fitness and physiotherapy, operating area, storage and hallway.

Fraunhofer IMS is responsible for the project Staff- and Patient-Assistant. This project aims to enhance patientautonomy with the help of assistant systems and to increase staff-assistance via sensor-supported acquisition of context data and system solutions. As part of this project, the focus is on the following:

Hygiene-related System Solution

The issue of hygiene becomes increasingly important in German hospitals. According to estimates by the Deutsche Gesellschaft für Krankenhaushygiene (DGKH, German Society for Hospital Hygiene) in 2009 40,000 fatalities were results of infections in hospitals. Particularly the increase of resistant
SYSTEMS AND APPLICATIONS HOSPITAL ENGINEERING

germs (e.g. MRSA¹) is of major importance. Fraunhofer IMS explores and develops solutions for the realization and documentation of hygiene processes with the help of sensorsupported devices for hand disinfection.

Software for Behavioral Analysis

By means of a software solution and the integration of sensors in the patient's room and the instruments and furniture inside, the patient's behavior and care is recorded. This aims to detect abnormal behavior or dangerous situations in time and to develop automatic care documentation. The overall concept includes the transmission of collected data to an existing emergency call system and to the KIS².

Mobile Ward Round/Care Assistant Vehicle

A constant access – independent from time and place – to KIS-data and other medical subsystems in the form of digital case files is indispensable for medical staff. Particularly during ward rounds, all data needs to be accessible at the patient's bed. Fraunhofer IMS explores and develops efficient solutions for data-display, -entry and -transmission in case of mobile ward rounds or care assistant vehicles.

Fitness, Exercises of Precautionary Measures and Rehabilitation

Fraunhofer IMS explores and develops ways to integrate fitness machines into existing IT-systems and hospital-processes in the context of precautionary measures and rehabilitation. In particular, Fraunhofer IMS is engaged in the development of new intuitive control concepts and the networking of fitness machines and medical system solutions, for instance, to enable automatic transmission of performance data to the KIS, the family doctor or physical therapists. The other way around, a software solution is to be developed, which proposes a fitness program for the patient based on his or her current physical condition.

¹ MRSA: methicillin-resistant Stapylococcus aureus

² KIS: Krankenhaus-Informationssystem (trans. Hospital Information System)

JUTTA – CARE ACCORDING TO INDIVIDUAL NEEDS

T. Stevens



Demographic change in Germany results in higher life expectancy and in an increased number of people in need of assistance and care. Hereby, the need of care staff increases, while staff shortages in the field of professional care are already reality.

Furthermore, the lifestyle of the younger generation changes, so that the *classical* approach to care, that is to say care by adult children in the same household, is often no longer applicable. Given this development in combination with the demographic changes, it makes sense to make arrangements which allow the elderly to stay at home as long as possible. Besides, surveys reveal clearly that elderly Germans wish to live in a regular apartment or a service apartment.

As part of the project *JUTTA* – *Just in Time Assistance*, funded by the German Federal Ministry of Education and Research, Fraunhofer IMS, in cooperation with industrial partners and a nursing service in Duisburg, develops new methods of resolution and business models for care which meet the demand of people in need of assistance in the privacy of their home. This new model envisions care according to actual need of assistance instead of predetermined and fixed tours of care staff. This aims to preserve and enhance the individual competence of those in need of care to allow a predominantly self-determined life even later in life.



The actual need is visualized by means of a signal light as the interface of care and technology. Similar to a traffic light, different colors indicate the current state of the person taken care of: red displays an urgent need of care, yellow suggests that assistance is useful and green announces a currently self-determined life.

The actual care process is then carried out by family members, voluntary helpers, professional care staff or – in case of an emergency – by doctors. To ensure the medical attendance in the privacy of the patient's home, medical engineering sensors are employed additionally in order to transmit measured data to a medical center. The medical center then reacts in case of an emergency.

As a technological base for the signal light, sensors and actuators using radio technology are installed in the apartment. Therefore, standard components of building service engineering like motion detectors, light switches, window or door contacts, which are networked, are employed. All sensor information and data is evaluated at the apartment, so that all information concerning detailed patterns of behavior remains there. First, the system gets to know the patient's *usual* behavior and configures itself accordingly. In case of *unusual occurrences*, the nursing staff is informed by means of the signal light.

SYSTEMS AND APPLICATIONS JUTTA - CARE ACCORDING TO INDIVIDUAL NEEDS



The signal light is displayed at the nursing service's coordinating unit where the nursing staff's tours are organized according to the actual needs of the patients. Therefore, care assistant vehicles are equipped with GPS, so that the coordinating unit knows the position of the vehicles at all times. In order to support and facilitate documentation, care staff is in possession of a mobile unit to record care processes in a simple and quick way.

The JUTTA-system is currently employed in real to life living environments to gain first experiences in the field of dynamic care processes. In the long run, service according to individual needs is aimed to allow a convenient, self-determined and secure life in the privacy of one's home later in life.

(For further information, please visit www.just-in-timeassistance.de)

List of Publications and Scientific Theses 2010

1. Monographs	76
2. Papers in Monographs	76
3. Journals and Conference Papers	76
4. Oral Presentations	79
5. Patents5.1 Granted Patents5.2 Laid Open Patent Documents	80 80
 6. Theses 6.1 Dissertations 6.2 Diploma Theses 6.3 Master Theses 6.4 Bachelor Theses 6.5 Project Theses 	81 82 82 83 83
7. Product Information Sheets	83

1. Monographs

5th Fraunhofer IMS Workshop CMOS Imaging. (Workshop CMOS Imaging <5, 2010, Duisburg>). München: FhG, 2010

2. Papers in Monographs

Feldengut, T.; Kolnsberg, S.; Kokozinski, R.: **UHF power transmission for passive sensor transponders.** In: Advanced microwave circuits and systems. Wien: In-Tech, 2010, pp. 421–436

Hennig, A.; Vom Bögel, G.: **Analysis of power absorption by human tissue in deeply implantable medical sensor transponders.** In: Advanced microwave circuits and systems. Wien: In-Tech, 2010, pp. 407–420

3. Journal and Conference Papers

Arnold, N.; Bauer, J.; Heß, J.; Kraus, P.; Kropelnicki, P.; Ruß, M.; Yang, P.; Voß, J.; Weiler, D.; Vogt, H.:

Integration of MEMS sensors with complex CMOS circuitry on 200mm Si wafers.

(SEMICON Europa <2010, Dresden>). In: SEMICON Europa 2010. Dresden: Messe Dresden GmbH, 2010

Bär, E.; Kunder, D.; Lorenz, J.; Sekowski, M.; Paschen, U.: Coupling of Monte Carlo sputter simulation and featurescale profile simulation and application to the simulation of back etching of an intermetal dielectric.

(International Conference on Simulation of Semiconductor Devices and Processes (SISPAD) <15, 2010, Bologna>). In: 2010 International Conference on Simulation of Semiconductor Processes and Devices. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE, 2010, pp. 53–56 Bauer, J.; Weiler, D.; Ruß, M.; Heß, J.; Yang, P.; Voß, J.; Arnold, N.; Vogt, H.: Fabrication method for chip-scale-vacuum-packages based on a Chip-to-Wafer-Process. (Conference on Electro-Optical and Infrared Systems <7, 2010, Toulouse>). In: Electro-Optical and Infrared Systems: Technology and Applications VII. Bellingham, Wash.: SPIE Press, Online publ. 27 Oct. 2010, pp. 78340S-1 - 78340S-8 Betz, W.; Görtz, M.; Feussner, H.; Schneider, A.; Knödgen, F.; Trieu, H.-K.: Feasibility study of an integrated pressure sensor transponder for triggering of a pacemaker in the treatment of dysphagia. (Biomedizinische Technik (BMT) <2010, Rostock>). In: BMT 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: de Gruyter, 2010, without pagination Dierk, S.; Trieu, H.-K.; Köper, I.: CMOS based biosensor with integrated biomembrane: spectre simulation and measurement. (PRIME <6, 2010, Berlin>). In: PRIME 2010. Berlin: Techn. Univ., 2010, without pagination; Paper 10039

Dogangün, A.; Naroska, E.; Stockmanns, G.:

Ambient Awareness-Assistenten im Pflegeumfeld. (Kongress Ambient Assisted Living <3, 2010, Berlin>). In: Ambient Assisted Living 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: VDE, 2010, Paper 2.4 [5 Bl.]

Dogangün, A.; Munstermann, M.; Naroska, E.; Stockmanns, G.: Kontextadaptive Gedächtnisunterstützung in Alltagssituationen.

(Biomedizinische Technik (BMT) <2010, Rostock>). In: BMT 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: de Gruyter, 2010, without pagination Durini, D.; Matheis, F.; Nitta, C.; Brockherde, W.; Hosticka, B. J.: Large full-well capacity stitched CMOS image sensor for high temperature applications.

(ESSDERC <40, 2010, Sevilla>).

In: ESSDERC ESSCIRC. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE, 2010, pp. 130–133

Durini, D.; Spickermann, A.; Mahdi, R.; Brockherde, W.; Vogt, H.; Grabmaier, A.; Hosticka, B. J.:

Lateral drift-field photodiode for low noise, high-speed, large photoactive-area CMOS imaging applications.

In: Nuclear instruments and methods in physics research/A 624 (2010), 2, pp. 470–475

Engelien, E.; Ecin, O.; Strathen, B.; Malek, M.; Viga, R.; Trieu, H.-K.; Hosticka, B. J.; Kokozinski, R.; Grabmaier, A.:

Modellierung eines kalibrierungs-freien Volumenstrommesser für medizinische Anwendungen durch die Timeof-Flight (TOF) Methode.

(Biomedizinische Technik (BMT) <2010, Rostock>). In: BMT 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: de Gruyter, 2010, without pagination

Grabmaier, A.; Schliepkorte, H.-J.:

Der intelligente Raum - Herausforderungen an Energieeffizienz und Nutzwert.

In: Wirtschaftsstandort Duisburg 3 [2010], pp. 2–7 http://ebn24.com/fileadmin/images/Standorte/00_Deutschland/ NRW/145_Duisburg_09_10/R_09_Grabmeier_Schliepkorte/ Grabmaier_Schliepkorte_25.03.2010.pdf

Grey Oropeza, S.; Vom Bögel, G.; Hennig, A.; Meyer, F.: Direct digitalization and frequency translation using an undersampling scheme for software-defined-radio based RFID UHF-Systems.

(RFID SystTech <6, 2010, Ciudad Real>). In: RFID SysTech 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: VDE-Verl., 2010, without pagination Haverkamp, T.; Naroska, E.; Dogangün, A.; Stockmanns, G.: **Sensorunterstützte Pflegedokumentation.**

(Kongress Ambient Assisted Living <3, 2010, Berlin>). In: Ambient Assisted Living 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: VDE, 2010, Paper 2.2 [5 Bl.]

Hennig, A.; Vom Bögel, G.:

A data transmission technique for passive sensor-transponders in medicine.

(International Conference on RFID <4, 2010, Orlando, Fla.>). In: IEEE RFID 2010. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE, 2010, pp. 215–222

Hennig, A.; Vom Bögel, G.; Grabmaier, A.:

A reader antenna with carrier suppression for wireless sensor systems.

(RFID SystTech <6, 2010, Ciudad Real>). In: RFID SysTech 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: VDE-Verl., 2010, without pagination

Hochschulz, F.; Vogt, H.; Paschen, U.: CMOS process enhancement for high precision narrow

linewidth applications.

(ESSDERC <40, 2010, Sevilla>). In: ESSDERC ESSCIRC. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE, 2010, pp. 254–256

Hochschulz, F.; Paschen, U.; Vogt, H.:

Multiphysics simulation for the optimisation of CMOS processes for high precision optical measurement applications.

(International Conference on Multiphysics Simulation <1, 2010, Bonn>).

In: 1st Conference on Multiphysics Simulation. Bremen: Fraunhofer-Allianz NUSIM, 2010, without pagination [11 Bl.]

Klauke, S.; Görtz, M.; Rein, S; Hoehl, D.; Thomas, U.; Eckhorn, R.; Bremmer, F.; Wachtler, T.:

Stimulation with a wireless intraocular epiretinal implant elicits visual percepts in blind humans : results from stimulation tests during the EPIRET3 prospective clinical trial.

In: Investigative ophthalmology and visual science. Published ahead of print Sept 22, 2010

Kropelnicki, P.; Vogt, H.:

A new DC-temperature model for a diode bolometer based on SOI-pin-diode test structures.

(International Workshop on Symbolic and Numerical Methods, Modeling and Applications to Circuit Design <11, 2010, Gammarth>).

In: SM² ACD'2010. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE, 2010, without pagination

Mahdi, R.; Fink, J.; Hosticka, B. J.:

Lateral-drift-field photodetector for high speed 0.35 µm CMOS imaging sensors based on non-uniform lateral doping profile.

(PRIME <6, 2010, Berlin>). In: PRIME 2010. Berlin: Techn. Univ., 2010, without pagination; Paper 10029

Marx, M.:

System issues for time synchronization in Real Time Localization Systems with multi path mitigation.

(European Wireless Conference (EW) <16, 2010, Lucca>). In: European Wireless Conference. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE, 2010, pp. 596–601

Meyer, W.; Grinewitschus, V.:

Intelligente Assistenzsysteme für alte und behinderte Menschen – Mehrwert für die Sozialwirtschaft?

(Kongress der Sozialwirtschaft <6, 2009, Magdeburg>). In: Sozialwirtschaft - mehr als Wirtschaft? Baden-Baden: Nomos-Verl.-Ges., 2010, pp. 43–48

Müller, H.-C.:

SmartForest – Einsatz von Transponder-Technologie und drahtlosen Sensornetzen in der Forstwirtschaft. (Innovationstage <3, 2010, Berlin>). In: Innovationstage 2010 : Forschungs- und Entwicklungsprojekte. Bonn: BLE, 2010, pp. 119–121

Müntjes, J.; Meine, S.; Flach, E.; Görtz, M.; Hartmann, R.; Schmitz-Rode, T.; Trieu, H.-K.; Mokwa, W.:

Monitoring intravascular pressure with a pulmonary artery pressure sensor system – assembly aspects. (European Conference & Exhibition on Integration Issues of Miniaturized Systems <4, 2010, Como>). In: Smart Systems Integration 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: VDE-Verl., 2010, without pagination [Paper 81]

Prost, W.; Zhang, D.; Münstermann, B.; Feldengut, T.; Geitmann, R.; Poloczek, A.; Tegude, F.-J.: **InP-based unipolar heterostructure diode for vertical integration, level shifting, and small signal rectification.** In: IEICE transactions / E / C 93 (2010), 8, pp. 1309–1314

Trieu, H.-K.:

Integrated MEMS solutions for biomedical applications. (International Conference on NANOSENS <3, 2010, Wien>). In: NANOSENS 2010. Wien, 2010, without pagination

Trieu, H.-K.:

Integrated micro and nanosystem solutions – potential for micro implants in diagnostics and therapy.

(NanoBio Europe <5, 2010, Münster).

In: NanoBio Europe 2010. Münster: CeNTech, 2010, without pagination

Trieu, H.-K.:

Micro implants and bioelectronics – new technologies in medical diagnostics and therapy.

(Workshop Medizinische Messsysteme <2010, Mülheim a.d. Ruhr>).

In: IEEE-Workshop Medizinische Messsysteme 2010: Kurzfassungen der Vorträge. Mülheim a.d. Ruhr: HRW, 2010, p. 2

Trieu, H.-K.; Klieber, R.; Kordas, N.:

Sensing and Signal conditioning at 250°C : no longer a problem due to SOI.

In: Sensor Report (2010), 3, pp. 12-13

Urbaszek, A.; Trieu, H.-K.; Traulsen, T.; Mokwa, W.:

Entwicklung eines implantierbaren Drucksensors zum kontinuierlichen Monitoring des pulmonalarteriellen Drucks bei Herzinsuffizienzpatienten.

(Biomedizinische Technik (BMT) <2010, Rostock>). In: BMT 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: de Gruyter, 2010, without pagination

Vom Bögel, G.; Scherer, K.:

Ambient Intelligence in next generation rooms and buildings.

(Leibniz Conference of Advanced Science <10, 2010, Lichtenwalde>).

In: Sensorsysteme 2010: Abstracts, Lichtenwalde: LIFIS, 2010, p. 2

Vom Bögel, G.; Meyer, F.; Kemmerling, M.:

Energieversorgung von mikroelektronischen Sensormodulen über Funk.

(Workshop Energieautarke Sensorik <6, 2010, Hamburg>). In: Energieautarke Sensorik 2010. Berlin [u.a.]: VDE-Verl., 2010, Paper 11 [Bl. 1–6] Weiler, D.; Ruß, M.; Würfel, D.; Lerch, R. G.; Yang, P.; Bauer, J.; Vogt, H.:

A digital 25 m pixel-pitch uncooled amorphous silicon TEC-less VGA IRFPA with massive parallel Sigma-Delta-ADC readout.

(Infrared Technology and Applications Conference <36, 2010, Orlando, Fla.>).

In: Infrared technology and applications XXXVI. Bellingham, Wash.: SPIE Press, 2010, pp. 76600S-1 – 76600S-8

Würfel, D.; Weiler, D.; Hosticka, B. J.; Vogt, H.:

Noise of short-time integrators for readout of uncooled infrared bolometer arrays.

(Kleinheubacher Tagung <2009, Miltenberg>). In: Advances in radio science 8 (2010), pp. 129–133

4. Oral Presentations

Grinewitschus, V.:

Brauchen wir smartere Mietwohnungen – Technologietrends und Praxiserfahrungen.

Verbandstag der Wohnungs- und Immobilienwirtschaft, Hannover, January 21, 2010

Grinewitschus, V.:

Smarte Mietwohnungen: Technologien und Anwendungstrends.

Fachtagung Verband der Thüringer Wohnungswirtschaft, Erfurt, November 11, 2010

Scherer, K.:

Energieeffizienz mit Smart Homes und Smart Buildings. Kongress eWorld 2010, Essen, February 10, 2010

Scherer, K .:

Smart Home – der Innovationsprozess von der guten Idee zum guten Geschäft. Kongress ConLife, Köln, May 19, 2010

Scherer, K.:

Smart-Home und Servicewohnen – Techniktrends und Geschäftsmodelle.

Kongress "Vernetztes Wohnen – Multimedia in der Wohnungswirtschaft", Bochum, November 4, 2010

Schliepkorte, H.-J.:

Nutzerabhängiger Energieverbrauch im Zweckgebäude. Kongress eWorld 2010, Essen, February 10, 2010

Vom Bögel, G.:

RFID im Maschinenbau – Marktüberblick und technische Grenzen. VDMA-Workshop RFID im Maschinenbau, Frankfurt a. M., September 8, 2010

Vom Bögel, G.:

Sensornetze für die Prozessoptimierung in der Logistik. Userforum auf der Euro-ID, Köln, May 5, 2010

Würfel, D.:

An uncooled VGA-IRFPA with novel readout architecture. Kleinheubacher Tagung, Miltenberg, 04.10.10

5. Patents

5.1 Granted Patents

Huppertz, J.:

Apparatus and method for efficient analog-to-digital conversion. October 26, 2010 US 7,821,434 B2

Schrey, O.; Brockherde, W.; Hosticka, B. J.; Ulfig, W.: Optischer Abstandsmesser und Verfahren zur optischen Abstandsmessung. February 25, 2010 DE 10 2008 018 718 B4

Stücke, T.; Christoffers, N.; Kolnsberg, S.; Kokozinski, R.: **Amplifier circuit with adjustable amplification.** June 15, 2010 US 7,737,785 B2

Vogt, H.: Bolometer. March 23, 2010 US 7,683,324 B2

Vogt, H.

Bolometer mit organischer Halbleiterschichtanordnung. January 27, 2010 EP 1 994 384 B1

5.2 Laid Open Patent Documents

Boom, T. van den; Hosticka, B. J.; Brockherde, W.; Bechen, B.; Erni, D.; Kirstein, U.; Lennartz, K.:

Verfahren zum Behandeln einer Population von in Flüssigkeitströpfchen suspendierten Objekten aus Zielund Restpartikeln sowie Vorrichtung zum Durchführen dieses Verfahrens. November 18, 2010 DE 10 2009 021 614 A1

Boom, T. van den; Ünlübayir, S.; Trieu, H.-K.: Vorrichtung zur Bestimmung von einer Keimverteilung abhängigen Information auf einem Trägersubstrat und Verfahren zum Bestimmen derselben. December 09, 2010 DE 10 2009 023 279 A1 Görtz, M.; Trieu, H.-K.; Mokwa, W.: Flexible visual prosthesis and method for manufacturing a flexible visual prosthesis. August 19, 2010. US 2010/0211168 A1

Huppertz, J.; Hosticka, B. J.; Würfel, D.: Device and method for detecting electromagnetic radiation. January 27, 2010 EP 2 147 288 A1

Huppertz, J.; Hosticka, B. J.; Würfel, D.: **Device and method for detecting electromagnetic radiation.** September 9, 2010 US 2010/0224787 A1

Huppertz, J.; Hosticka, B. J.; Würfel, D.:

Spiegel, Gehäuse und Infrarotgerät sowie Verfahren zum Herstellen derselben. April 8, 2010 DE 11 2007 003 491 A5

Kappert, H.; Kordas, N.; Lerch, R.; Lüdecke, A.:

Verfahren zum Erzeugen eines Signals für einen Test eines Analog-Digital-Wandlers, Verfahren zum Erzeugen eines Wertes für einen Test eines Analog-Digital-Wandlers und Analog-Digital-Wandler.

January 21, 2010 DE 10 2008 033 180 A1

Kirstein, U.; Lennartz, K.; Boom, T. van den; Hosticka, B. J.; Brockherde, W.; Bechen, B.; Erni, D.:

Method for treating a population of objects suspended in fluid droplets comprising a target and residual particle, and device for performing the waiting loop of said method. November 18, 2010 WO 2010130459 A2 Kropelnicki, P.; Ruß, M.; Vogt, H.: Diodenbolometer und ein Verfahren zur Herstellung eines Diodenbolometers. September 22, 2010 EP 2 230 497 A1

Meyer, F.; Vom Bögel, G.; Meyer, S.: **Konzept zur Reduktion eines Phasenrauschens eines PLL-Frequenzgenerators.** November 25, 2010 DE 10 2009 021 937 A1

Trieu, H.-K.; Wiebe, P.; Klieber, R.: **Apparatus and method for controlling and monitoring the pressure in pressure line or pipes.** April 15, 2010 US 2010/0089167 A1

6. Theses

6.1 Dissertations

Hennig, A.:

Übertragungstechnik für passive Sensortransponder in der Medizin. Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Diss., 2010

Sommer, S. P.:

Plasma Charging Damage bei Bauteilen höchster Zuverlässigkeitsanforderungen.

Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Diss., 2010 http://duepublico.uni-duisburg-essen.de/servlets/DerivateServlet/Derivate-24642/Sommer_Sebastian_Paul_Diss.pdf

Spickermann, A.:

Photodetektoren und Auslesekonzepte für 3D-Time-of-Flight-Bildsensoren in 0,35 µm-Standard-CMOS-Technologie.

Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Diss., 2010 http://duepublico.uni-duisburg-essen.de/servlets/DerivateServlet/Derivate-24771/Spickermann_Andreas_Diss.pdf

6.2 Diploma Theses

Benstöm, C .:

Personalentwicklung für Führungskräfte – Entwicklung eines Rahmenkonzeptes für die Führungskräfteentwicklung am Fraunhofer-Institut für Mikroelektronische Schaltungen und Systeme.

Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

Brockners, C.:

Entwicklung und Charakterisierung eines niederfrequenten Rauschmessplatzes zur Bestimmung des Rauschverhaltens von Halbleiterbauelementen. Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

Gözüyasli, L.:

SmartKitchen – Ein intelligentes Unterstützungssystem. Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

Li, B.:

Entwurf einer integrierten Sensor-Ausleseschaltung für passive UHF Transponder.

Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

Nas, A.:

Evaluationsmethoden für Ambient-Assisted-Living-Anwendungen am Fallbeispiel einer Badezimmeranwendung.

Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

Pinske, D:

Personen- und aufgabenbezogene Aktivitätserkennung in Wohnumgebungen – Konzept und Realisierung in einer bestehenden Architektur.

Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

Schmitz, C.:

Entwicklung eines Tests zur Charakterisierung von Analog-Digital-Umsetzern mit Schnittstellen zur Integration in einem Bildsensortest. Dortmund, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

Weitz, K.:

Entwurf und Umsetzung eines DC/DC-Buck-Konverters für den Einsatz in Hochtemperaturanwendungen. Dortmund, Univ., Dipl.-Arb., 2010

6.3 Master Theses

Bahar, E.:

Trendanalyse internationaler logistischer Pflegekonzepte und Prozessoptimierung in der häuslichen Pflege. Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Master-Thesis, 2010

Eschke, J.:

Digitalisierung einer herunter gemischten Transponderantwort und Implementierung geeigneter Digitalfilter auf einem Digitalfilter auf einem Xilinx-FPGA zur Empfindlichkeitssteigerung eines UHF-RFID-Readers. Dortmund, Fachhochsch., Master-Thesis, 2010

Jungreithmeier, J. A.:

Entwicklung eines energieeffizienten Basisbandprozessors für passive UHF RFID-Transponder. Hagenberg, Fachhochsch., Master-Thesis, 2010

Kohl, B.:

Optimierung und Implementierung eines Modells der Übertragungsstrecke für passive Transponder zur Vereinfachung der Systemanalyse mit Hilfe von Schaltungssimulatoren.

Düsseldorf, Fachhochsch., Master-Thesis, 2010

Kotipalli, R. V. R.:

Optimization of trench process for improving gate oxide integrity and reliability in 0.35µm CMOS SOI technology. Deggendorf, Hochsch., Master-Thesis, 2010

6.4 Bachelor Theses

Blei, D.:

Entwurf, Simulation und Verifikation unterschiedlicher Filter zur analogen Basisbandfilterung in einem UHF RFID Lesegerät in Form eines programmierbaren FPAA. Krefeld, Hochsch., Bachelor-Thesis, 2010

Feldermann, J.:

Entwicklung und Aufbau eines Mikrocontrollergesteuerten Lesegerätes zur Erfassung und Auswertung von mikromechanischen Druck- und Temperatursensorsignalen für medizinische Implantate.

Krefeld-Mönchengladbach, Campus Krefeld, Hochsch., Bachelor-Thesis, 2010

Kleinfeld, T.:

Entwicklung einer Ansteuerungs- und Kalibrierungseinheit für ein Sensorarray, innerhalb des Projekts "FlexTak".

Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Bachelor-Thesis, 2010

Thekooden Cherian, D.:

Expansion of an IC test-system for the optical characterization of FIR imager-chip. Duisburg-Essen, Campus Duisburg, Univ., Bachelor-Thesis, 2010

6.5 Project Theses

Berg, M.:

Integration des IMS eigenen Transponderfrontends in ein mikrocontrollerbasiertes Transpondersystem für den UHF ISM Frequenzbereich. Dortmund, Fachhochsch., Studienarb., 2010

Osenberg, H.:

Mobilfunkbasierte Datenübertragung für eingebettete Systeme mit Hilfe über Bluetooth angebundener Mobiltelefone.

Siegen, Univ., Studien-Arb., 2010

Sohling, M.:

Simulation, Entwurf, Aufbau und Verifikation von Transponderantennen für das IMS eigene Transponderfrontend im UHF ISM Band Frequenzbereich. Dortmund, Fachhochsch., Studienarb., 2010

7. Product Information Sheets

Betriebsstundenzähler für Baumaschinen IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Business field micromachined pressure sensor technology IMS-Duisburg, 2010

CMOS image sensor with 118db linear dynamic input range IMS-Duisburg, 2010

CMOS linear photosensor array, 1 x 512 pixel IMS-Duisburg, 2010

CMOS ToF-Sensor for 3D imaging, 64 x 8 pixel IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Distributed test system for interoperability tests IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Drahtlose Sensornetze in der Land- und Forstwirtschaft IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Drahtlose Temperatur-Überwachung in der Frischelogistik IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Drahtloses Messen – Bsp. Fahrrad-Computer IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Energy efficience by smart facility management IMS-Duisburg, 2010

High temperature capacitive pressure sensor IMS-Duisburg, 2010

High-temperature IC'S IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Humidity and temperature transponder IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Ihre Idee – Wir setzen sie um IMS-Duisburg, 2010

IMS LS-3580 CMOS linear photosensor array, 1 x 3580 pixel IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Integrated capacitive pressure sensors IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Integrated solutions for bioelectronic sensing IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Kickoff: New generation of more intelligent systems IMS-Duisburg, 2010 Long range passive sensore transponders in medical applications IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Micro reactors IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Microsystem for portable electrochemical measurements IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Passive UHF transponders with integrated sensors IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Passiver Sensor zur Korrosionserkennung IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Ratiometric pressure sensors with differential mode IMS-Duisburg, 2010

RFID im Bau IMS-Duisburg, 2010

RFIDs Funken durch Metall IMS-Duisburg, 2010

RFIDs transmit signals through metal IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Sensor network wireless displays IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Sensor-Transponder for pressure and temperature IMS-Duisburg, 2010

Wireless sensor networks IMS-Duisburg, 2010

CHRONICLE 2010

Chronicle

inHaus-center events 2010	87
Workshop on energy self-sufficient sensor networks	88
News from trade fair VISION and ELECTRONICA	89
The Fraunhofer-Talent-School	90
Workshop: Reliability of Semiconductor Devices	91

CHRONICLE 2010





INHAUS-CENTER EVENTS 2010

In 2010, Fraunhofer-inHaus-Center hosted many events for professional audiences. Highlights include the following:

June 24, 2010: win² – Technical Modernization of Real Estate – Solutions and Potential Benefits

More than forty percent of the world's energy consumption is related to buildings. This is why technical modernization of residential and commercial properties has a great potential for economic development and the creation of workplaces, as well as for energy saving and environmental protection. The outdated technical equipment of the majority of buildings accounts for great optimization potential. Rapidly changing user needs and usage requirements demand suitable solutions: This includes, for example, the enhancement of the structural and functional flexibility of rooms and buildings. Fraunhofer-inHaus-Center and the Niederrheinische Industrieund Handelskammer (Chamber of Commerce and Industry of the Lower Rhine region) took up this current debate and organized the win²-event "Technical Modernization of Real Estate". In the course of three hours, various experts provided information about the current conditions of the field of real estate for 45 participants. Furthermore, diverse concepts of modernization in combination with cost-benefit assessment were presented. The evening closed in a lively discussion and a relaxed get-together.

September 16, 2010: Fraunhofer-inHaus-Forum 2010 – Health and Care – Innovations to Increase the Efficiency of Technical Systems, Rooms and Processes in the Field of Healthcare

Today, the field of healthcare and social welfare faces diverse challenges: The cost pressure for providers of medical service increases, while the population experiences demographic changes, which will result in a rising number of elderly in need of care in the future. At the same time, there is no additional care and medical staff at hands; quite contrary, the number has been decreasing. Which solutions are then necessary to develop a sustainable and innovative healthcare and social sector?

This year's Fraunhofer-inHaus-Forum tried to find answers to this question.160 participants listened to lectures researchers of each business area had prepared with special reference to the field of healthcare. Keynotes by well-known representatives of the field framed the event. The day ended in a panel discussion of leading experts.

As it has become common to the establishment of the inHaus-Forum, visitors had the chance to take a look at the inHaus-partner's exhibitions and the laboratories.

CHRONICLE 2010



WORKSHOP ON ENERGY SELF-SUFFICIENT SENSOR NETWORKS

The Fraunhofer one-day-workshop on energy self-sufficient sensor networks on November 16, 2010, Munich, provided numerous hands-on examples from different branches and was geared to experts from development and manufacturing as well as quality control and reliability. Fraunhofer IMS presented current developments in integrated low-power sensors and in collaborative signal and information processing. The workshop was preceded by the Fraunhofer-Forum »Aufmerksam im Schwarm – Energieautarke Sensoren und Sensornetze« on November 15 at Fraunhofer-Haus.



VISION 2010

As in the years before Fraunhofer IMS took place in the VISION fair in Stuttgart fom November 9th to 11th 2010. Fraunhofer IMS presented its news in the field of 3D CMOS image sensor technology working on the time-of-flight principle and infrared sensor technology.

Special interest was given to the infrared sensors which provide a better level of safety for drivers. Objects at roughly body temperature are luminous in the infrared region at a wavelength of around ten micrometers. Detectors in the camera register this thermal radiation and locate the source of heat. This enables drivers to see people or animals long before they come into vision through dipped headlights. Another advantage: Other road users are not inconvenienced by the invisible infrared radiation.

Journalists were especially interested in these research results and, as a result, these news were presented on the first page of the fair newspaper. A few words about the fair:

The VISION is an international trade fair for industrial image processing and identification technologies. It is the meeting place of all players this sector and therefore the most important marketing tool in order to meet international customers and to present to them the latest developments in image processing.

Approximately 6,800 visitors from over 50 countries, predominantly from Europe but also from overseas, mainly from the USA and South Korea, came to Stuttgart this year to obtain information at the world trade fair for machine vision.

ELECTRONICA 2010 IN MUNIC

The Electronica Fair in Munic counts among the biggest trade fairs worldwide and presents concentrated expert knowledge in nearly all consumer segments and user industries – from automotive and industrial electronics to embedded, wireless, medical electronics and MEMS.

It is the meeting place for decision-makers who search for attractive offers and for good products to meet current and future requirements. Fraunhofer IMS presented the following topics:

- Innovative computer process control for micro reactors in the chemical industry
- High Temperature ASICS and processes for applications up to 250 degree
- Vacuum isolation panels with integrated low power pressure sensor ASIC and wireless communication
- Medical implants with integrated low power pressure and temperature ASIC and wireless communication
- Image Sensores for high demands (aerospace 3D Imagesensors)

All in all the fair was a big success.

CHRONICLE 2010



THE FRAUNHOFER-TALENT-SCHOOL

From November 4th to 6th 2010 the Fraunhofer-Talent-School took place at IMS

Setting up radio circuits, learning to understand the construction of microchips and the design and simulation of a chip at the computer – these tasks were a cool challenge for the participants of the Duisburger Fraunhofer-Talent-School 2010.

33 interested teenagers from whole Germany, but predominantly from North-Rhine Westphalia, met on November 4th at the Fraunhofer IMS Talent-School to experience the microelectronic working environments of engineers and scientists and to get useful incentives for their own career.

The Workshop 1 "Mit uns funkt's – Vom Schwingkreis zur Funkanwendung" ("... – From the oscillating circuit to the radio application") focussed on constructing microcontroller circuits and to start running them. The teenagers for example brazed devices on circuit boards. During Workshop 2 "Chips und mehr" ("Chips and more") the participants got a taste of the fascinating world of microelectronics. The clean room and laboratory tours pointed up the complexity of chip design. The participants worked practically with chips, oscilloscopes and microprocessors.

In Workshop 3 "Rechnergestützter Schaltungsentwurf – Wie kommt die Schaltung auf den Chip?" (Computer-aided circuit design – How do circuit and chip meet?") the teenagers learned about different design processes and the corresponding CAE-Software. On the basis of a small specimen circuit, the participants independently sampled the design of a circuit. After some failed attempts, they had an error-free working circuit.

Well, no one is born a master!



WORKSHOP: RELIABILITY OF SEMICONDUCTOR DEVICES

On March 18th 2010 the Workshop on the reliability of semiconductor devices took place in the Fraunhofer-inHaus-Center in Duisburg. This workshop was organised in cooperation with the GMM (Gesellschaft für Mikroelektronik) and around 50 participants from industry took part.

Microelectronics expands more and more into sensitive areas in which malfunctions can cause large material damage or even negative effects on health, for example in medical and automotive engineering. In automotive engineering the development ranges from comfort electronics, driver assistance and tasks in the power train to topics like "Drive by Wire". In addition, the requirements of the rough ambience in automobiles (temperature change, humidity, impurities) have to be considered. In medical engineering implantable systems, which do not only measure but also act e.g. by pharmaceutical dosage in the combat against diabetes, are developed. Therefore, microelectronic systems have to meet high reliability requirements. Especially the automotive industry expedites this topic. Furthermore, a particular reliability is required for space technology and military applications. The small quantities required for these areas pose a special challenge. Also in industrial electronics with its rough ambient conditions the devices are subjected to special reliability requirements.

PRESS REVIEW



Fraunhofer Institut IMS - einzigartige Innovationswerkstatt



GFW Duisburg Winter 2010

Aus Wissenschaft & Forschung

Funksignale aus dem Herzen

Herzkammerdruck-Bestimmung mittels implantiertem Sensor

(Fraunhofer IMS) Im Herz Millimeter große Sensor mit herrscht Arbeitsteilung: Die Hilfe eines Katheters an der rechte Hälfte hält den Lun- Herzwand befestigt. Während genkreislauf in Gang, die linke pumpt das mit Sauerstoff angereicherte Blut in den Körper, Erhöht sich der Druck in der linken Herzkammer, kann das eine Herzinsuffizienz bzw. Herzmuskelschwäche anzeigen.

Wie es um den Druck bestellt ist, könnte künftig ein am Duisburger Fraunhofer-Institut für Mikroelektronische Schaltungen und Systeme (IMS) entwickelter winziger Sensor ermitteln, der ins Herz implantiert wird.

Hierzu wird der stäbchen-förmige, zwei mal zehn timeter weit zu senden.

Praxis Physiotherapie April 2010

der Katheter anschließend gezogen wird, verbleibt der Sensor im Herzen. Er liefert - wenn erforderlich - über einen Zeitraum von mehre-ren Monaten Daten über die

Druckverhältnisse. Das allerdings nur auf Anfrage: Wie ein passiver RFID-Transponder Da sich der Sensor mit seiner arbeitet der Sensor lediglich dann, wenn ihn das zugehörige Lesegerät mit Energie ver-sorgt – induktiv via Antenne. Er benötigt weder Akku noch Batterie. Eine Leistung von neunzig Mikrowatt reicht aus, um den Druck zu messen und



ausgelesen werden. Um die Dämpfung des Signals durch Knochen, Körpergewebe und -flüssigkeiten so gering wie Stichworte: möglich zu halten, funkt das System im 10-MHz-Bereich. Es steckt in einer biokompa-Sensor System im 10-MHz-Bereich. Es steckt in einer biokompa-

sung*

tiblen Polymerhülle, die - im integrierten Antenne im Herz nur längs ausrichten lässt, wellen nicht abschirmt, sonmuss er seitlich am Brustkorb dern passieren lässt, www ausgelesen werden. Um die fraunhofer.de



Isis Januar 2010

Sehr klein gebaute Drucksensoren übertragen Messwerte drahtlos



Management & Aktuelles 2010

Implantierbares Monitoring-System für Hypertoniker

93

PRESS REVIEW



RFID in Wartung und Instandhaltung

KELCH

Gantiéh neue Enleschbreiche texen sein durch die Konnomistion von FING-Organ mit Senotren erschrießen, Hier werden Gestlam wie Temperatur und Druck an zeiger heft al Druck im Kesello oper lauft ein stager heft al Druck im Kesello oper lauft ein stager heft al Druck mit Kesello oper lauft ein stager heft al So tesen sich feure Stiftendozien von Av-tigen vermisten. Auschlieggebend änd die Aufhahms und das Adepeichen von Umgezungsführungstohen uns diesen

Umgenungsinformationen, um aus disser Vertra die Arbeitsbelaufung und die Art di Bottinste zu ermittelle. So köhnen zum Be-Stettinsteret geschlich um Vannungsretenen zu osthmenen, und die Art des Berkinster. I geschlicht der Erhöfelnen Bernfellen Wolf-auch bezeichtert als, Condition Monitolien In Fehbershotz, 2.6 bis zu höhnen Temper-turen, bedreitett, abes die Nachheimen geher Schiederstalt zufehen und unverzeiglich in-stende gesetzt werden misseen.

Am Fraunhaler IMS werden derzeit die neu-entwickelten RFID Chips mit Sensoren or-grobit, die sich in annricher Weise wie die PRIC-Chips integraren lassen, daubber him-aus aber den Metriweit der Sensorik bieten.

t Strahlung gut ab ps, kleinen Datensr

In Produktionshellen kommt es auf hochste Genauigheit an - olt zählen hundertstel Mitt meter. Sind die Fräeer oder Bichrer jedoch abgenutzt, ist eis mit der Genauigheit obtei-Aus diesem Grunde missen die Mitzneher die Areitzauge regelnablig bei der Wartung und der Biogenbaßte bei der Wartung Aus Aus die euf Um lauf Har

Werkzongen-Zur Lösung dieses Problems haben die Ent-wickler des Fraunhofer IMS den Übetra-dungsweg untersielt. Der RFID-Chi befindet chain Khanlag gaht das civiladorer Das Fraunhallen-Institutis für Mittrodektionestens Schallungen umd Systemer (NS In Lockburg) hein in-Autrag der Kecht A. Linke Grant-H aus Schommtni-sonn des Inamenien Heissteller von Weit-sonn des Inamenien Heissteller von Weit-stender Schulter auf der Besteller von Weit-berlanden, Filter Ochreis in der metallisteren gelaunden, Filter Ochreis in der metallisteren Mittragen zu zurstenzen an ein Langeget außlich-tiersauführsteras zubert Medal satimter Strantung bekammterhalten zur das Des sofhad der Verködigkunstnienbighten. Die Hersubstreterung dabeit Mehall aufumnt Stranting bekanntermeitlem gut ab. Des set-be Problem int bei den RPD-Ortips auf Schimt eine Metallische Hulte den RPD-Chip ab, gestangen weder Energie in Form des elektromagnetischen Feldes von Leze-gerich zum RPD-Orthon, noch ungekehnt Da-ten zum Lesegarät durch.

der Awendung. Deniter maas sind verle wellene Einschlen reichte softbast: Das Übertragungspringe sisst ach überst den nazen, wei informatie-nen über metienes Brecken triweg dahltes leistmisch werder massen. Eines in Ricco-teration, die mätieres üherbase Gleiste dung derktiss beiter Spusien efdigen, inner-nab des Armis über Kabet leis zum rächtes derker. Sis elles eine Heusen andere Robeitneh dahlte werder Robeitneh dahlte eine ein Brazier und eine Robeitneh dahlte gestenland gestellte ten kom besoglast koholi-mostandisson Besopiel ist die zu lötenfilizie-rende metallische Werkzeugeufnahme dre-hend geleget und sie der anterbereichen Spinste einstermister. Die abenfalste metalten geles Ansagegetet eingebunk Auguste ein an die Kommunikation vom sationähen Teil ouch die distanten Spindel in der errorehm-beren Werkzeugensster hannaltein, was aber auf dinkom Wege durch die Spin-

ISIS Mai 2010

RFID-Datenspeicher funken durch Metall

mit BBD. Chin

gungsweg unterheit. Der RFID-Chij sich mit einer Angenenspule verbi-der OberNiche des Adapter. Hier is das Signel drahtlos zu einer Artem an die dechare Spindel Über. Eine hindung verbindet die Antennansp

den Teil des Messgeräts überbrücken und in die Spule engekoppein, die an das Lesege-rät angeschlossen ist.

Eine Kleinsone der RFID-Massgarüte ist ba-retes in Mess- und Einsteligerören der Keleh & Links GmtH bei ausgawählten Kunden in der Anwendung.

Die Funksignale von RFID-Chips, die sich in einem metallischen Werkstück befinden, werden normalerweise wirkungsvoll abgeschirmt. Forscher des Fraunhofer-Instituts bringen nun die kleinen Datenspeicher dazu, Werkzeuge zu messen und die Daten trotzdem an ein Lesegerät zu senden.

Bei der Fertigung kommt es auf hichste Genzulgkeit an - oft zäh-len hundertstel Millmeter beim Spanen und Behren. Sind die Feiser oder Behren jedich abge-mtet, ist es mit der Genzuigkeit werbel. Deskalb vermessen die Misarbeiter in der Produktion ille Matarbane in due Probabilises des Verderspres regularisation, levrer se auf des bandelungsmusch-en sum Binaste kammen. Um anch könnes Adwecklungen kambular eitenem en kännen, notieren die Weilwasse die Baher einer lakarenge. Bischer ist die Vernessung Bischartet, dem die Baher missen mit einem passenden Ad-des Wertserega dar auch der Adhy-ter in die Raheren, auch spra-del, trägesetzt werden. Sowohl die Wertserega dar auch der Adhy-ter sind mit ebes Steisemunnte-ten und eine Almassangen werken per Inden Ablegen, webs sich

per Hand abgetippt, wobei sich Fehler einschleichen können.

Künftig ist das Vormessen unkomplizierter Porscher des Fraunholer-institu für Mikroelektronische Schalt-een under her des Fraunholer-Instituts

Forscher die Fraumöber-Instituts – Nei des M für Mikroelskurnische Schaltenn-gen und Systeme IMS in Duisberg haben sich im Aufrag der Firma Kolch & Links Gabil dieses Problems angenenmen. Das Unttrehtnens im deutschen Scherndorf ist Spesielist für innovative, hechgelatise Werkzeugaufnahmen, Einstellgeräte, Mess technik und Werkzeuglogistik zur Leistunge ings-

Polyscope August 2010



an ein Leo metallischen Spindel, die das Werkosug mit dem Adapter zufnimmt. Die Berzussforderung dabei war klas: Metall schirmt Strahlung gut ab – das weiss jeder, der einmal versucht hat, in einem Haus aus Stahlbeton mit dem Handy



ecken hinweg drahtlos üb missen – etwa in Robotera - Geienke hoben + 15

Dem Mattenbruch auf der Spur

Rost an Armierungen von Betonbrücken hat fatale Folgen, im schlimmuten Fall besteht Einsturgefahr. Forscher haben jetzt ein Sys-tem zur Früherkennung von Rost an den Stahlmatten entwickelt. Das Halbzeug Draht spielt dabei eine besondere Rolle. Ein im Be-ton eingelassener Sensortransponder misst, wie weit die Korrosion fortgeschritten ist.



Der Sensor ist mit dinnen Eisendrähten durchzo die in regelmäßigen Abständen angebracht sind. Bild: Fraunhofer IMS

Denn Betonbrücken müssen einiges aushal-ten. Frost, Verkehrsbelastung und Abgase setzen ihnen zu. Hinzu kommt Streusalz ge-gen Glatteis. Natriumchlorid, das gängigste Tausalz, wird bundesweit in großen Mengen verteilt. Bei Tauwetter zerfallen die Salze zu Ionen. Sie dringen in den Betone ni und zer-stören dessen fünf Zentimeter dicke alka-lische Schutzschicht. Erreichen die gelösten Salze die Stabltmatten, beginnen diese zu rosten. Die Bausubstanz wird geschädigt. In der Folge kommt es zu Rissen, Betonstücke können abbrechen.

Draht Juni 2010

Bislang gab es keine effektiven Tests um zu ermitteln, wie tief die Jonen in den Beton eingedrungen sind und welcher Schaden be-reits entstanden ist. Bis dato klopfen Bauarbeiter den Skabbeton von Hand mit dem Hammer auf Hohlstellen ab, Diese sind ein Indiz für Korrosionsschäden. Diese Metho-de ist zeitaufvahndig, Wie sich Rost-Früher-kennung wirksamer und vor allem kosten-günstiger erreichen lässt, wissen die Exper-ten des Franuhofer-Instituts für Mikroelek-tronische Schaltungen und Systeme 1MS in Duäburg, Mit einem Sensartransponder Mehr einen Sensortransponder den Beton permanent messen und überwa-chen. Der Sensor wurdte von der Material-prüfanstalt für das Bauwesen Braunschweig MPA Braunschweig entwickleit, die Forscher vom IMS haben ihn in ein passives, kabel-loses Transpondersystem integriert. Der Sensor selbst ist mit sehr dönnen Eisendräh-ten durchzogen, die in regelmaßigen Ab-ständen zueinander angebracht sind. "Kommen die gelösten Salze an die Eisen-drähte, beginnen diese zu rosten. Die Armie-rung bricht. Anhand der Anzahl der defekten Eisendrähte last sich feststellch ischon an-gegriffen sind", erklatt- Frederic Meyer, Wis-senschafter am Institut für Mikroelektro-nische Schaltungen und Systeme. Auf diese Weise könne man berechnen, winn die nichste Instandsetzung erfordertich ist. Die Messdaten überträgt der Transponder per Funk an ein Lesegerät, das die Bauarbeiter beiter den Stahlbeton von Hand mit dem Hammer auf Hohlstellen ab. Diese sind ein

mit sich tragen. "Unser System beziebt die für die Messung erforderliche Energie nicht über eine Batterie, sondern über ein magne-tächste Föld. Er muss dahre nicht ausge-tauscht werden und kann dauerhaft im Bau-werk verhöleben", sagt Meyer. Dieser lasse sich auch nachträglich in den Beton einset-zen. Derzeit laufen erste Feldversuche. Der



Sensortransponder wird in eine Versuchs brücke der MPA Braunschweig eingelasse und getestet.

Fraunhofer-Institut für Mikroolektro-nische Schaltungen und Systeme IMS Finkenstraße 61, 47057 Duisburg Tel.: +49 203 3783-300 Fax: +49 203 3783-266 E-Mail: info@ims.fraunhofer.de E-Mail: info@ims.fraunhofer.de Internet: www.ims.fraunhofer.de

New sensor monitors salt penetration in concrete





The pa concrete bridges, allowing corrosion damage to be detected at an early stage. Image courtesy of Fraunhofer IMS.

Materials Performance August 2010

er a period of time, bridge components may deteriorate to the extent that the

structure is no longer safe. While a number of factors contribute to bridge corrosion, one of the most common is the use of deicing salts, a practice that has contributed significantly to bridge corrosion and is the leading cause of concrete bridge deterioration. The salts cause corrosion of the concrete's steel reinforcing bars and other steel compo-

Concrete a steer relation cing bars and other steel compo-nents supporting the bridge. According to researchers with Fraum-lofer-Geselkenth Institute for Microalec-tronic Circuis and Systems (IMS) (Dui-burg, Germany, these stab break down into their ionic components as the ice thans, which then penetrate the concrete and degrade in protective alkalian layer. Any salt that leaches through to the steel ords used to reinforce the concrete will cause them to rust, reulding in cracking and structural diamage. In a worst-cause scenario, the bridge list? Could collapse. Until now, the researchers any, there have been no effective tests to determine how deep the ions have penetrated the concrete and the extent of the damage hey have already caused. The current parcife to detect concrete deterioration is time-consuming and involves bridge workers

94

Infrared camera provides a better view

Infrared cameras see more than the naked eye and can make road traffic safer. Cameras for the long-wave infrared range, however, have the disadvantage that the sensor requires constant cooling, which adds to the cost and complexity of the device. Now a new type of detector has been developed which functions at room emperature.

At night on an unlit country road: the bends in the road restrict the view ahead and, to make things worse, it is foggy. The car driver is exercising all due care and yet still does not see the deer on the road ahead until it is nearly too late. An emergency ston memoria collision emergency stop prevents a collision with the animal just in time. In such situations infrared cameras could provide a better level of safety. Objects at roughly body temperature are luminous in the in-frared region at a wavelength of around ten micrometers. Detectors in the camera register this thermal radiation and locate the source of heat. This could enable drivers to see people or animals long before they come into vision through dip-ped headlights. Other road users would not be inconvenienced by Vision Focus November 2010



We could be the first in Germany to offer this technology", says Dr. lirk Weiler, scientist at the IMS (Bilder: Böttger/Fraunhofer IMS) Dirk Weiler, sc

the invisible infrared radiation. The problem is that infrared caat the Fraunhofer Institute for Mimeras for the wavelength range above five micrometers like it cold - the sensor has to be con-stantly cooled down to about microelectronic Circuits and Sys-tems IMS in Duisburg have suc-ceeded in producing an imaging sensor for the long-wave infrared nus 193 degrees Celsius. Uncooled imagers for the long-wave infrared range do already perature. At the heart of the IRFPA (Infrared

exist today, but they are mainly used in the military sphere and are more or less unavailable on the European market. This is now

duce a two-dimensional image, several microbolometers are com-bined to form an array. If the microbolometer absorbs light from a heat source, its interior tempera-ture rises and its electrical resistance changes. A readout chip then converts this resistance va-lue directly into a digital signal. Previously this was not possible



without a further intermediate step - normally the electrical pulse is first translated into an analog signal and then digitized using an analog/digital converter. »We use a very specific type of converter, a sigma-delta converter, in our imager. This has enabled us to produce a digital signal directly«, Weiler explains.

As complex and costly cooling is no longer required, further areas of application become feasible

Durchblick auch in der Nacht

Am Duisburger Fraunhofer Institut wurde ein neuartiger bildgebender Sensor für den Infrarotbereich entwickelt, der im Gegensatz zu alten Geräten auch ohne Kühlung auf minus 193 Grad Celsius funktioniert.

(RP) Infrarotkameras sehen mehr als das bloße Auge und können bei-spielsweise den Straßenverkehr si-cherer machen. Bei Kameras für den fernen infraroten Wellenlän-genbereich muss der Sensor jedoch ständig geklicht werden, was auf-wändig und kostspielig ist. Ein neu-artiger Detektor, der am Franho-fer-Institur für Mikroelektronische Schaltungen und Systeme MS in Duisburg entwickelt wurde, funk-tionierr nun auch bei Raumtempe-ratur.

tionleft nun auch der Anderser-ratur. Nachts unterwegs auf der unbe-leuchteten Landstraße: Die kurvige Strecke ist schwer einzusehen, noch dazu ist es nebelig. Dement-sprechend vorsichtig fährt der Au-tofahrer – und sieht das Reh auf der Straße dennoch erst, als es fast zu spät ist. Mit einer Vollbremsung verhindert er inn letzten Moment (d-nen Zusammenprall mit dem Tier. nen Zusammenprall mit dem Tier. Infrarotkameras könnten in einer solchen Situation für mehr Sicher-heit sorgen. Denn Objekte, die un-gefähr Körpertemperatur haben,

Rheinische Post Juli 2010

leuchten im fernen infraroten Wel-lenlängenbereich von zehn Mikro-metern von sich aus. Detektoren in der Kamera nehmen diese Wärme-strahlung auf und orten so die Wär-rer Menschen oder Tiere erkennen, lange bevor das Abblendlicht sie er-fasst. Andere Verkehtsteilnehmer würden dürch die unsichtobare In-frarotstrahlung nicht beeinträch-tigt.

fratotstrahlung nicht beeinträch-tigt. Das Problem war bislang: Infra-rotkameras für den Wellenlängen-bereich oberhalb von fünf Mikro-metern mögen es frostig – der Sen-sor muss ständig auf etwa minus 193 Grad Celsius heruntergekühlt werden. Zwar gibt es auch heute schon ungekühlte Imager für den fernen Infrarotbereich, allerdings werden diese überwiegend im mili-tärischen Bereich eingesetzt und sind am europäischen Markt kaum verfügbar. Das soll sich nun än-derm den Duisburger Fraunhofer-Forschern ist es gelungen, einen bildgebenden Sensor für den fer-

INFO Fraunhofer IMS

set to change. Research scientists

range that functions at room tem-

Focal Plane Array) sensor is a mi-

crobolometer – a temperature-sensitive detector that absorbs long-wave infrared light. To pro-

Das Fraunhofer IMS besteht als ei-genständiges Institut der Fraunho-fer-Gesellschaft seit Mitte 1984 in Duisburg, bezog das hierfür er-richtete Institutsgebäude 1987, das entsprechend der steigenden An-forderungen 1992, 2001 und 2005 balich enveitert wurde Das Instiforderungen 1992, 2001 und 2005 baulich erweitert wurde. Das Insti-tut entwickelt mikroelektroni-sche Schaltungen und Systeme, die insbesondere mittelständi-sche Unternehmen eine schnelle und produktnahe Systementwick-lung ermöglichen: Das Institut lei-et als. Nachfolger von Prof. Dr. Günter Zimmer seit dem 1. Januar Porf. Dr. Atton Grahmaier Prof. Dr. Anton Grabmai

nen Infrarotbereich zu fertigen, der bei Raumtemperatur funktioniert, "In Deutschland wären wir die ers-ten, die eine solche Technologie an-

bieten", sagt Dr. Dirk Weiler, Wis senschaftler am IMS.

Viele Anwendungsfelder

Viele Anwendungsfelder Date aufwändige und kostenin-narise Kulhung nicht mehr nötig ist, einfinen sich neben dem Ein-satz im Automobil noch weitee An-wendungsfelder. Vor allem im Be-reich von mobilen Geräter durfte sich durch die neue Brinvicklung ein nicht nur Gewicht sparen, der Betriebszeit des mobilen Gerätes schnöht nicht nur Gewicht sparen, duch die Akkuleistung und damit de Betriebszeit des mobilen Gerätes enzung für die Kuhlung vergetzu-zung für die Kuhlung vergetzt. Thobite Infranzotameras ist der Bradschutz, etwa um versteckte Stutnester aufzuspüren oder Per-jokalisieren. Erste Laboretss mit ereinersicht. Die Berscher konsten

dem neuen Sensorelement waren erfolgreich: Die Forscher konnten bereits einige Infrarotbilder auf-



Infrared image taken by the Fraunhofer research

The technology could be linked to automatic braking systems that stop the car when a person or animal looms out of the darkness, or "augmented reality" style head-up displays that show otherwise invisible objects on the driver's screen.

The new cameras are suitable for everyday use in cars because they work at room temperature. Most cameras that work in the long-wave infrared spectrum - the bit that objects at body temperature are visible in, like humans and animals - need to be constantly kept cool, to around 80 Kelvin (-193C or -315F). THat is prohibitively difficult and expensive to do in road vehicles.

Room-temperature infrared cameras do exist, but the <u>technology</u> is largely held by the US military and almost impossible to get in Europe.

However, a German research group, the Fraunhofer Institute for Microelectronic Circuits and Systems WS, has created a room-temperature sensor, the infrared Focal Plane Array (IRFPA), that will be made www.impactlab.com Juli 2010

Detektor für Infrarotkameras arbeitet ohne Kühlung



Forscher des Fraunhofer-Institutes IMS haben einen Detektor für den fernen Infrarotbereich entwickelt, der bei Raumtemperatur arbeitet. Weil die aufwendige und kostenintensive Kühlung nicht mehr nötig sei, eröffneten sich zahlreiche Anwendungsfelder, vor allem im Bereich von mobilen Geräten. Denn ohne Kühlmechanismus lasse sich nicht nur Gewicht sparen. Auch die Akkuleistung und damit die Betriebszeit des mohilen Geräts erhöhe sich. Ein potenzielles Einsatzgebiet für mobile Infrarotkameras sei der Brandschutz, etwa um versteckte Glutnester aufzuspüren. Management & Aktuelles Juli 2010

Farbsensoren für bessere Sicht

Sogenannte CMOS-Bildsensoren von Spezialkameras, etwa bei Fahrerassistenzsystemen, sehen meist nur schwarzweiß und haben eine begrenzte Lichtempfindlichkeit. Es gibt sie inzwischen in einer Version, die Farbe erkennen und wesentlich lichtempfindlicher sein sollen. Für viele Fahrassistenzsysteme sind hochwertige Kameras notwendig, die vielerlei Anforderungen genügen müssen. Hohe Umgebungstemperaturen etwa, kleine Baugrößen und natürlich Robustheit wird ebenfalls verlangt. Außerdem darf ihren "Augen" nichts entgehen, und sie sollten wenig kosten. Derzeit verwendet man für die meisten Systeme im Auto CMOS-Sensoren. Das sind Halbleiterchips, die Lichtsignale in elektrische Impulse verwandeln und in den meisten Digitalkameras eingebaut sind. Doch bisher sind die Sensoren für Industrie- und Spezialkameras meist farbenblind. Forscher vom Fraunhofer-Institut für Mikroelektrische Schaltungen und Systeme IMS in Duisburg bringen Farbe ins Spiel: Sie haben einen neuen Fertigungs-Prozess für Bildsensoren entwickelt, der den Chips beibringt, Farbe zu sehen. SZ

Süddeutsche Zeitung März 2010

Auf extreme Temperaturen vorbereitet

Bildsensoren, die zur Qualitätskontrolle in der Produktionstechnikoder für elektronische Einparkhilfen in Autos verwendet werden, müssen hitzebeständig sein – schließlich herrschen dort oft sehr hohe Temperaturen. Forscher haben jetzt einen CMOS-Chip gefertigt, der bei 115 °C noch funktioniert.

Immer mehr Automobilhersteller statten ihre Fahrzeuge mit Bildsensoren aus – etwa um Fußgänger, Fahrzeuge im toten Winkel und Bordsteine für elektronische Einparkhilfen zu erkennen. Die Sensoren müssen auch bei extrem hohen Temperaturen und in gleißendem Sonnenlicht funktionieren. Sind sie etwa am Rückspiegel oder auf dem Armaturenbrett angebracht, können sie sehr heiß werden.

Das Fraunhofer-Institut für Mikroelektronische Schaltungen hat daher im Auftrag eines Industriekunden einen CMOS-Bildsensor entwickelt, der Umgebungstemperaturen von -40 bis + 115 °C standhält, »Bislang erhältliche CCD-Bildsensoren versagen ab etwa 60 °Cs, erläutert Werner Brockherde, Abteilungsleiter am IMS. »Unser Chip dagegen ist nicht nur hitzebeständig, er funktioniert auch bei arktischen Temperaturen.« Den Forschern ist es gelungen,

Den rorschern ist es getungen, Pixel zu entwickeln, die einen besonders geringen Dunkelstrom aufweisen. Dieser Reststrom, der bei vollständiger Dunkelheit fließt, ermöglicht Brockherde zufolge auch bei großer Hitze qualitativ gute Aufnahmen. »Einen

Markt und Technik Oktober 2010

niedrigen Dunkelstrom zu erzielen, war keine leichte Aufgabe«, verdeutlicht er. »Erhöht sich die Temperatur um 8 °C, so verdoppelt das den Dunkelstrom – Bildrauschen und reduzierte Dyna-



tont.

mik sind die Folge. Geisterbilder entstehen, die sich in Form von Artefakten oder flächigen Abbildungen störend auf dem Bild bemerkbar machen.«

raum von 90 dB sorgt für großen Kontrastumfang und hohe Detaligenauigkeit sowohl in Schatten- als auch in sehr hellen Bereichen. Lichtnuancen werden

Eine weitere Besonderheit des

ensors ist seine Bildgröße von

2.5 x 2.5 cm. Der Vorteil: »Für

Anwendungen mit schwacher

Beleuchtung oder für Aufnahmen

im Infrarot- oder UV-Bereich lässt sich der Sensor direkt an einen

elektronischen Bildverstärker an-

schließen«, wie Brockherde be-

Bildpunkten auf. Sein Dynamik-

bereich bzw. Belichtungsspiel-

Der Sensor löst mit 256 x 256

präzise wiedergegeben. Selbst bei schwachen Lichtverhältnissen reagiert der Sensor mit hoher Empfindlichkeit, so dass er sich auch für Nachtsichtgeräte eignet. Darüber hinaus unterstützt

der Chip sowohl Kameras mit Synchron- als auch mit Asynchron-Verschluss: Der synchrone Verschluss verhindert Bewegungsartefakte, etwa beim Aufnehmen schneller Bewegungsnso dass sich die Bewegungsunschärte reduziert.

Der Schlitzverschluss dagegen erlaubt ein höhere Bildrate und kontinueriche Bildaufnahme, was das Bildrauschen minimiert. »Wir haben den Sensor in einem Standardprozess mit 0,5-µm-CMOS-Technik in unserer eigenen Halbeiterfabrik hergestellte, führt Brockherde aus. »Für Industriekunden fertigen wir dort auch Sonderbauelemente.«

Außer dem Automobilsektor hat der Wissenschaftler noch weitere Märkte im Blick- «Unser Chip eignet sich auch für den Einsatz in Produktionsanlagen der chemischen oder der Stahlindustrie, wo er zur Prozess- und Qualitätskontrolle dienen kann«, sagt er. «In einer Walzstraße beispielsweise, wo Bleche gepresst werden, herrschen Ja sehr hohe Temperaturen.«

Zu sehen ist der CMOS-Bildsensor auf der Messe Vision in Stuttgart vom 9. bis zum 11. November 2010 (Stand 6 D12). (ak)

Researchers develop image sensor for rough environments Christoph Hammerschmidt

For automotive applications requiring very low and very high ambient temperatures, scientists from the Fraunhofer institute for microelectronic systems (Duisburg, Germany) has developed a CMOS image sensor capable of working at an extended temperature range from -40 through 115 degrees Celsius.

Widespread image sensors based on CCD technology (Charge-Coupled Device) are operational at antibient temperatures of up to 60 degrees Celsius. The Fraunhofer Institute researchers claim they have developed a pixel architecture featuring an extremely low dark current. This residual current doubles with every 8 degrees of temperature increase, causing signal noise and reducing the available dynamic range of the device. The reduction of this current, which flows even in complete darkness, makes it possible to capture very high-quality images even in extreme heat, said Fraunhofer researcher Werner Brockherde.

The CMOS-based image sensor developed by Fraunhofer features a dynamic range or exposure latitude of 90 dB, resulting in high contrast and optimized detail reproduction in shadow as well as in very bright segments of the image. Its very high sensitivity and low noise makes the device suited for night vision gear, the researchers claim.

The device was developed within a customer project with somewhat unusual specifications: Despite its large size, the sonsor features a resolution of only 256 x 256 pixel. "It was a customer-specific design," said Brockherde. The excellent signal features of the device have been made possible by the relatively large geometries at semiconductor level: The device has been designed and manufactured with a feature size of 0. Emicrons.

Besides automotive applications, the image sensor could be used in process control and quality assurance applications in the chemical and steel industry, Brockherde said.

EE Times Oktober 2010

Forschung & Wissen

Haustür steht und klingelt, sondern auch Fotos von Besuchern macht, während der Mieter außer Haus ist. Bevor jemand seine Wohnung verlässt, berührt er kurz das Piktogramm "Haus" auf dem Bildschirm. Paul meldet dann Auffälliges: Das Fenster in der Küche steht offen, das Licht im Schlafzimmer brennt noch. Verlässt der Mieter die Wohnung, wird auch das vom Computer erfasst.

"Damit unsere Lösungen im Alltag funktionieren, arbeiten wir an der Universität eng mit der Abteilung Stadtsoziologie zusammen", erklärt Floeck. Dort testete Professorin Annette Spellerberg beispielsweise, ob die Bedieneroberfläche des Bildschirms einfach und für jedermann verständlich ist. Tatsächlich kommt Paul ohne Bedienungsanleitung aus: Tippt der Bewohner am Monitor auf das Symbol für Telefon, kann er jemanden anrufen, berührt er das Haus, werden alle wichtigen Informationen über die Wohnung angezeigt. Für diese besondere Aus-

Apotheken Umschau Januar 2010

Waschtisch mit interaktivem Spiegel

(fraunhofer) Unter "Ambi-ent Assisted Living" (AAL) werden Konzepte, Produkte und Dienstleistungen ver-standen, die neue Techno-logien und soziales Umfeld miteinander verbinden und verbessen. Ziel ist, die Le-bensqualität für Menschen in allen Lebensabschnit-tee zu erhöhen (Bundeenit Menschen bereitgestellt. Auf diese Weise soll ihre Auto-nomie erhöht und ihnen ein nomie erhöht und ihnen ein längerer Verbleib in ihrer ge-wohnten Umgebung ermög-licht werden. Die Konzepte basieren auf der Grundidee, Anwesenheit und Handlun-gen von Bewöhnem zu er-kennen und unterstützend einzuwirken, ohne störend einzugreifen. zu erhöhen (Bundesmi-erium für Bildung und

Praxis Ergotherapie Februar 2010

Berker

> Multimedia Steckdose

Antonneuer seconde Wer hätte vor ein paar Jahren gedacht, dass wir unsere Wohnzim-mer mit High-Definition-Bildschirmen zu vollwertigen Kinos auf-werten würden? Dass Spielekonsolen in vielen Haushalten zum Standard gehören? Dass Präsentationsbeamer aus Konferenzäu-Standard gehören Dass Päsentalionsbeamer aus Konferenzta-men längst nicht mehr wegzudenten sind? Für all diese Fälle hat Berker ein Norffolie an Multimadia-Stockdosen aufgelegt, mit diesen sich modernste Unterhältungsslektronik nahltos integrieren lässt. Als einer der erster deutschen Schlach enstellter Dietel Berker damit ein Multimedia Anschlusspaket mit Vorteilen, die fast ebenso aufre-gend sind wie ein gurer Heimkänsbend: - Geeignet für konventionelle Steckverbindungen wie auch An-schluss neuarliger Gerätegenerationen (E. Full HD) - Cinch/s Vieleerschilder, Hil-Anagen und VDD-Player - USB/MIni Audio-Steckdose für mobile Endgeräte sowie PC-Perioheriseerite

Peripheriegeräte VGA-Steckdose für Notebooks, Beamer und PC-Monitore (auch für

hochauflösende LCD-Monitore geeignet High-Definition-Steckdose für alle neuen Unterhaltungseleknik-Geräte (HDMI)

Gängige Einb Verfügbar in baumaterialien, daher einfache Montage Verfügbar in Berker Standard- und Flächenprogra Das Sortiment ist ab Oktober 2010 lieferbar.







Symbole: Mit einer leichten Berührung wird die Toilettenhöhe eingestellt

stattung ihrer Wohnung zahlen die Mieter derzeit zwei Euro pro Quadratmeter und Monat zusätzlich.

Das Bad merkt sich alles

Menschen zu unterstützen, ohne sie in ihrer Privatsphäre zu stören, ist auch das Ziel des Projekts "Assistive Bad-umgebung", das Wissenschaftler am Fraunhofer-Institut für Mikroelektro-

Confort Center 9 Mil Berker Comfort Center 9 präsentiert Berker den Prototyp eines neuartigen Touchpanets, das die Haussteuenung völlig neu begreift. You seiner intelligenten Schnik uber die Velfahr au Abglichkeiten bis hin zu konsequent lögischen Bedienung, Einfach zu bedienen. Mit seinem kapastiken Touchsreen libst sich das Berker Comfort Comfort Center 9 kann alles, was ein Intelligentes Haus braucht Steuerung vor Velfame und Kinns, Jalousien und Rohlider, Licht und Beleuchtungssenarien, Naumanlage und Schertneitserinzhlungen, Desricht über zu Bei wichtigen Erwicksnen und Energiverträuche. Darüber Iniaus eine ganze Reihe von Aufgaber, die den Allag er-lichtern – wie z. I. Viedo-Menz, FAMI, BSS, Dutenlogger, Vetter-medul, Spiegel-Funktion. Ven anderen Haussteuerungsgerätert un-terscheidet es Sich dunch die Velfahr der Funktionen der kapatite Bildschim, der wie beim Phone funktioniert, die Unkompflicitethet der Installation, die woie beim Phone funktioniert, die Unkompflicitethet die Installation, die wie beim Phone funktioniert, die Unkompflicitethet die Installation, die bongeuger untertweiterbeitet Gestaltung und nicht zu wregesen das pure, eile Design. & www.berker.de

0

Ein Haus denkt mit - innovative Technik für das Wohnen von morgen

Die Zukunft wohnt in einer Doppel-Lampen schalten ab, die Heizung dros-

haushälfte hinter einer Klinker-Passade. Allein eine Vielzahl von Schaltern und Tableaus deutet darauf hin, dass dieses scheinbare Standardmodell vollgestopft ist mit Technik. BUS-Systeme durchzie hen die Wände, Sensoren, Funkmodule, Computer kommunizieren miteinander. So sieht das Versuchslabor für das Wohnen von morgen aus. Das Projekt inHaus Duisburg ist

Das Projekt inHaus Dusburg ist Deutschlands größtes Labor für Am-bient Assisted Living (AAL). Das Bun-desministerium für Forschung übersetzt den Begriff mit "altersgerechte Assi-stenzsysteme für ein gesundes und unabhängiges Leben" und fördert den Bereich republikweit mit 125 Millionen Euro.

Das intelligente Haus ist vernetzt. "Wir entwickeln Szenarien, bei denen sich Geräte und Abläufe selbstständig steuern", erklärt Christian Ressel, Lei-

steuern, erklart Christian Ressel, Lei-ter des Geschäftsfelds Wohnen beim Praunhofer inHaus-Zentrum, Mensch und Haus kommunizieren. So teilt der Bewohner beispielsweise über einen Touchscreen mit: "Ich gehe zu Bett." Nun setzt sich das vorbestimmte Szena-rio in Gang: Die Jalousie fährt herunter,

Focus April 2010

Lampen schatten ab, die Heizung dros-selt die Leistung, alle nicht benötigten Geräte stehen auf Stand-by. Bisher sind die helfenden Häuser noch Experiment. Ein Schlussbericht der Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft konstatiert zu den Chancen von Ambient Assisted Living, dass es bisker nach circa zehn Jahren Forschung keinen funktionieren-den Markt gebe. Die Autoren vertrösten auf die Zukunft.

auf die Zukunft. Beredter Spiegel Auf dem Badezimmerspiegel erschei-nen Piktogramme, die durch die tägliche Körperhygiene führen. Nach dem Toi-lettengung leuchtet dus Symbol "Hände waschen* auf. Medikamenteneinnahme wird angezeigt mit Präparat und Dosierung. Schlaues Bad

Intelligente Armaturen regulieren Temperatur und Wassermenge,

Eine Wohnung, die mitdenkt

Auf das matte Glas der Kleider-schrank-Front lässt sich z.B. das Fern-sehbild projizieren. Überwachung im Schlaf

Deerwachung im Schiaf Sensormatratzen kontrollieren die Puls- frequenz. Falls erforderlich, kann bei Auffälligkeiten automatisch Hilfe geholt werden. Intelligentes Notrufsystem

Geschehen ungewöhnliche Dinge, können automatisch Nachbarn, Kinder,

können automatisch Nachbarn, Kinder, Service-Center oder auch Polizei und Feuerwehr alarmiert werden. Sensitiver Fußboden Eine Vietzahl von Sensoren erkennt Position und Bewegungsverhalten. Ist z.B. eine Person gestürzt, kann ein Not-rof ausgelöst werden Eingebaute Technik Sensoren, Funkmodule, Bewegungs-melder registrieren, was im Haus ge-

Sensoren, Funkmodule, Bewegungs-melder registrieren, was im Haus geschieht. Mobile Haussteuerung

Voolle raasseeerung Über ein tragbares Gerät lassen sich Licht, Heizung, Penster usw. bedienen. Fernseher als Schaltzentrale Auch der TV-Monitor kann als Ter-

minal benutzt werden, um das komplette Haus zu steuern.

und für Senioren

Kleine Helfe in der Wohn Bad Die Tolette und Waschbecken verstell automatisch ihre Höh je nachdem, wer das benutzt. Vergisst der Beunberg eine röstel ä er Hilfs 00 Die ve em Rechnor laufen alle Ionen aus der jeweiliger

Apotheken Umschau Januar 2010



INHAUS 1 UND INHAUS 2 Duisbarg. Das inHaus-Zentrum für in-teiligente Raum- und Gebäudesysteme ist die Smart-Home-Immontionswerkstaut des Fraunhofer-Instituts für Mikoelektronische Schaltungen und Systeme (MMS). Die inHaust-Anleige ist ein Anwendungsdabor für den Wohnmobilienbereich (Privathäuser, Wohnungen der Wohnungswirtschaft), die inHaus2-Anlage für den Natzhannobilenbereich (Bino, Hote), Veraustaltungsstame, Pflegeheim, Höspital). Sie diemei technischen Entwicklunger, Tests und Demonstrationen und werden für Weiterbildungen genutzt, unausinbaus-zentrum de

Das AAL-Magazin Februar 2010

Temperaur und wassernenge. Kontrolle am Ausgang Der Bewohner teilt am Touchpanel dem Haus mit, ob er kommt oder geht. Auch kann er überprüfen, ob z.B. die Fenster geschlossen, der Herd abge-schaltet oder die Lichter gelöscht sind. Wenn nicht, lässt sich dies von hier aus nachholen

Selbstbestimmt leben Technische Hilfsmittel erleich

die Prognosen em. 1d 13,5 Millionen 1schland älter als 70

en signa

szentrale L st Paul, der persö



uchen, die der

die Benutzer nicht wahrnehm, baben Handwerker in der Albert-weitzer-Straße beispielsweise hr als 600 Sensoren eingebaut beispielsw soren eingeb rnt für die Bev

Fraunhofer IMS Annual Report 2010

Imprint

Copyright 2009 by Fraunhofer-Gesellschaft Hansastraße 27 c 80686 München

ISSN 1435-0874 Annual Report Fraunhofer-Institut für Mikroelektronische Schaltungen und Systeme

Director: Prof. Dr. rer. nat. A. Grabmaier

Adresses: IMS Duisburg Finkenstraße 6 47057 Duisburg Phone +49(0)2 03/37 83-0 Fax +49(0)2 03/37 83-2 66 E-mail martin.van.ackeren@ims.fraunhofer.de

Editorial Staff: Martin van Ackeren

Fraunhofer IMS Annual Report 2010